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OVO Group Ltd

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

The directors present their strategic report for. the year end 31 December 2019.
Strategic Report
Business Overview

We are a collection of companies with a single vision: to power human progress with clean affordable energy for everyone.
Guided by Plan Zero, we are transforming our business in order to move faster to create a world without carbon. We commit
to achieving net zero carbon emissions across our own operations by 2030: And we will mobilise our customers to form a
zero carbon community, helping them halve their total lifestyle carbon emissions and eliminate their household emissions
completely by 2030. We will enable them all to be active participants in a newer, more resilient, flexible and mtelllgent grid
and to play their part in transitioning to a zero carbon world.

OVO grew out of the belief that there was a better way to sell energy. We started with the ambition to make energy cheaper,-
greener and simpler and with the commitment to make every decision as if the customer was in the room. With this focus on
transpareticy and fairness, we challenged the status quo and set the standard for new entrants to the market.

OVO has consistently ranked among the UK’s most loved energy brands, even at a time when public trust in the industry has
been historically low. The energy market is going through profound change with companies of all sizes struggling to adapt.
Increased competition, digitisation, the growth of big data, and changing consumer demands are eroding traditional business
models. The past few years have seen OVO develop from a top-rated energy retailer into @ group of companies delivering
innovative energy services underpinned by smart technology. '

2019 Trading Update

The Group made a loss in the year of£|06 185,000 (2018: £42,823,000) and had net liabilities of £47,448,000 (2018:
£46,052,000). :

Retail

Energy customer numbers have seen some decline as a result of increased price competition and record levels of switching in
the retail supply market. However, the competitive environment has softened significantly over the course of the winter. The
principal strategy for the year was focused on customer retention and optimising SMART meter installs, as well as launching
Plan Zero, our plan to drive progress to net zero carbon living. In addition, we were recognised for the fourth time in five
years by USwitch as Supplier of the Year. The group plans to continue investing through system capability and enhancmg
the operating model to suppon a larger customer base in the future.

Smart Homes .

At OVO we were quick to see the potential of smart energy services. We championed the smart meter rollout, with
approximately 50% of our customers at the end of 2019 having a smart meter. Smart meters are a step on the path to an
intelligent and sustainable energy network that will free us from our dependence on fossil fuels. They enable the adoption of
game-changing technologies that will transform the way we live and consume energy. We will provide our customers with
an effortless transition to smart homes, offering the installation, management and maintenance of smart energy solutions
mcludmg electric vehicle charge points, smart boilers, smart thermostats and in-home batteries.

Kaluza

Kaluza, our intelligent energy technology company, has developed a next-generation energy retail platform, focused on
allowing energy companies to deliver a digital experience to end customers as well as providing smart home technology
services. Following the migration of the OVO Energy customer base onto the Kaluza platform, the company will proceed
with the migration of the SSE customer base.

Home Services )
During the year, the company grew the ‘home services’ policy book from 159,753 to 175,607 policies, with 15,854 net
policy additions in the period, a growth of 10%. The principal stratégy for the year was centred around business growth,
namely policy growth. In order to support this strategy, Corgi Homeplan focused on wnder marketing channels including
digital and affiliates channels WhICh proved successful.
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OVO Group Ltd

‘Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Mitsubishi Corporation Investment
In February 2019, OVO Group Ltd received investment from Mitsubishi Corporation for a 20% stake.

Our business model, long-term vision for the energy sector and culture align well with our new global partner. Their
investment is enabling us to expand into new markets across Europe and Asia Pacific, accelerate the development of our
intelligent energy technologies company, Kaluza, and put us at the forefront of the global, tech-enabled transition to a
zero-carbon energy system.

Acquisition of Economy Energy

In January 2019, Ofgem appointed OVO Energy Limited, a wholly owned subsndlary of OVO Fmance Limited, to take over
Economy Energy’s 360,000 customer connections. With over two thirds of Economy Energy’s customer base on prepayment
meters, OVO Energy Limited was well equipped to seamlessly transition them onto Boost, OVO’s prepayment brand,
tailored specifically for pay-as-you-go customers. We have worked hard to seamlessly transition these customers onto our
own platforms whilst maintaining market leading customer service. .

Key Financial and Performance Indicators

The.group's key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows:

| Unit - 2019 2018
Customer numbers o : : ' . No. 1,377,000 1,302,000
Cash . o : : , £000 23379 81,045
Annualised gross profit margin ' . ' % ‘ 10 9.0
PBT&NAC . E . ' £000 (76,114)  (39,754)

*PBT&NAC is defined as (Loss)/Profit before Tax before Net Acquisition Costs, representing those costs resulting ﬁom
growing OVO’s customer base. :

Reconciliation to Statutory kesults : . 2019 2018*

' ' £000  £000

~ PBT&NAC E ‘ (76,114)  (39,754)
Net Acquisition Costs ' A o (31,486)  (12,516)
(Loss)/Profit Before Tax : . ' - T(107,600) _ (52,270)

*Refer to Note 16 for details of prior penod restatement |esultmg from the finalisation ofacqunsmon accounting.

The Group made a loss for the year ending 31 December 2019 and has net liabilities.
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OVO Group Ltd

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Subsequent events since the end of the reporting period
v Acguisition of SSE Retail

On 15 January 2020, OVO Energy Limited, a subsidiary of OVO Finance Limited, completed the transformational
acquisition of SSE plc's GB domestic retail business (SSE Energy services). As at 31 December 2019, all material conditions
of the acquisition had been satisfied, including regulatory clearance from both the Financial Conduct Authority (31 October -
2019) and the Competition and Markets Authority (10 December 2019). The acquisition formally completed on the 15
January 2020.

Our investment in scalable operating platforms, smart data capabilities and innovative technology combined with SSE’s
excellence at scale makes the two businesses a great fit. SSE won uSwitch’s Large Supplier of the Year 2019 and recently
came top of the Citizens Advice Bureau’s energy supplier rankings. We are both committed to increasing access to
sustainable energy. Combining the best of both our businesses will enable us to bring OVO’s energy technology to millions
more customers to provide a market leading customer experience.

Completing this acquisition means that OVO Energy Limited now serves approximately 15% of the market; making OVO
Energy Limited the UK’s third largest energy provider. .

COVID-19

Throughout the pandemic, our priority has been to ensure the séfety of our people whilst continuing to support all of our
customers, particularly those that are vulnerable. Our investment in technology and shared platforms has ensured a high level
of connectivity which means we are able to move to remote operations with minimal disruption.

However, unfortunately COVID-19 will impact our commercial performance in 2020, due to some kéy sales channels within
the business experiencing significant interruption as a result of the lockdown. The most notable of these is the impact on our
ability to continue the roll-out of smart meters to customers. .

As a result of COVID-19, we anticipate the need to recognise additional bad debt charges in 2020 as the ‘economic
consequences of the pandemic materialise with our ‘customers. This will be recognised in accordance with IFRS9, however
. there has been no financial impact on these financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertamtles
The principal risks and uncertainties impacting the Group relate to the wholesale price of gas and electr 1C|ty and bad debt
risk.

The Group manages commodity -price risk by securing gas and electricity under forward contracts and by suppiying' the
majority of customers on fixed price contracts. .

The Group mitigates bad debt risk by asking credit customers to pay by direct debit a month in advance of usage, which also
ensures OVO has the purchasing power to offer more competitive tariffs. For non-redit customers, prepayment and smart
meters are installed or a security deposit is taken to avoid bad debt risk.

The Group manages cashflow and liquidity risk through a'combination of short and long range forecastmg tools. This '

enables cash to be managed responsibily through our capital allocation process.
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OovO Group Ltd

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

1

Sustainability
Plan Zero

OVO launched its first sustainability strategy, Plan Zero, in September 2019. Plan Zero defines OVO’s purpose to drive
progress to zero carbon living.

Through Plan Zero, we commit to
* Net zero carbon emissions from our operations and from the energy we sell to our customers by 2030 by achlevmg ‘
absolute emissions reductions of 50% compared to a 2018 baseline in line with science-based targets for Scopes 1,2 and 3 as
a minimum and using greenhouse gas removals and/or carbon offsets for the remainder.

» Increase the proportion of EVs in the fleet to 70% by the end of 2020 and to 100% by 2025.

* Mobilise our customers to form a:zero carbon community, helping them halve their total lifestyle carbon emissions and
reduce their household energy emissions to net zero by 2030.

+ Optimise 5 million homes to be active participants in a more resnhent ﬂexlble and intelligent energy grid and to play their
part in transitioning to a zero carbon world.

» Advocate for a just transition to a zero carbon world that does not leave the poorest behind. We will work together with
government, regulators, businesses and other organisations to ensure we are creating a fair new energy system where
everyone in society shares in the benefits of our collective progress. .

These commitments were made based on a sustainability materiality assessment that identified and prioritised topics that are
most important to OVO and its community. This involved tracking trends, engaging with internal and external stakeholders
and mapping our strategy against external global standards such as the UN Sustainable Development Goals. For more
information about Plan Zero, please see our website: www.ovo.com/planzero

" Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Framework Regulations

+ OVO is subject to the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Framework Regulations (SECR). We therefore report our
2018 and 2019 energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions figures relating to gas, electricity and transport as well as
an intensity ratio, and information relating to our energy efficiency action. In 2019 our Scope 1 and Scope 2 operational
emissions were 1,598 tCO2e (Market-based)” and 1,985 tCO2e (Location-based)™. The greatest contributor to our Scope |
and Scope 2 emissions is our fleet of engineering vehicles, followed by the electricity and gas used to power our buildings.
Our intensity ratio (our Scope 1 and 2 emissions relative to levenue) is 1.1 tCO2e/£m (Market-based)” and 1.4 tCO2e/£m
(Locatlon based) . .

Energy consumptlon figures ' i
2018 2019

Area Category Sub-category Units . consumption consumption
UK  Group* UK  Group*
, " Natural gas KWh 1,671,761 1,678,201 1,552,828 1,566,478
G d diesel Stationary : . : : , .
as and diese combustion ~ Diesel (100% mineral . ) - 9813 9.830
diesel) > >
Small sized van Lives 220,781 220,781 189,844 189,844
(Diesel) .
: : Fleet vehlcle Small sized van . -
Transport fuel (Petrol) thref 83,969 83,969 225205 225,205
. combustion . Small sized van- o .
(Battery electric Miles ) 71,721 71,721 301,207 301,207
) ) vehicle) ) ‘
' Electricity Electricity Purchased electricity kWh 2,539,932 2,553,841 2,470,832 2,505,882
District heating and  District heating District heating and KWh - 3,059 - 5741

cooling and cooling  cooling
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OVO Group Ltd

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continuéd)

~ A ' . 2018C02 . 2019 CO2
zv\rea4 A Category  Sub-category ) Unit Ernissions Emissions
UK Group* UK . Group*
: Tonnes .
Natural gas 308 309 285 288
Stationdry & . CO2e A
combustion Tonnes
, . I . i )
Diesel (100% mmer‘al diesel) CO2e : 26 26
R410A Tonnes 44 a4 -
Fugitive ' Co © CO2 _ . )
Scope 1 emissions ‘ Tonnes
. emissions . Ra07e . CO2e . 4 4
Combustion Average van (Diesel CTomnes g0 s 492 492
of fuel for ge van ( ' ) CO2e : : ‘
transport . - : : :
burpgses Average van (Petrol) . ;F:%nzr;e's 185 185 497 | 497
Tonnes ’
Total Scope 1 CO2e ‘l,l 17 1,118 l,395 1,309
Purchased elecfricity- . Tonnes < . .
(Location-based) CO2e 9 [LEI 629 - 646
.. Purchased electricity Tonnes o
Electricity (Market-based) CO2e 600 . . 608 240 260
Average van (Battery electric Tonnes
Scope 2 vehicle) CO2e 6 6 27 27
cmissi_ans o District heating and cooling ~~ Tonnes . 2 : 3
District (Location-based) CO2e
heatingand . .
. cooling -~ District heating and cooling Tonnes } 2 . 3
- (Market-based) CO2e
Total Scope 2 emissions (Location-based) .231;:5 ' 725 733 656 676
Total Scope 2 emissions (Market-based) (T:‘(’)“z“es 606 615 267 290
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions Tonnes ) A
(Location-based) ’ CcO2 1842 1 ’85(3— 1,961 1,985
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions Tonnes u A
(Market-based) CO2%e 1,723 1,733 . 1,572 1,598
" Total : ) N
Scope .1 Total Scope | and Scope 2 emissions intensity Tonnes L _ .
and Scope relative to revenue (tCO2e/£m) . 1.8 1.8 1.3 1.4
. . CO2e/fm .
2 ‘(Location-based) .
emissions

“Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions intensity Tonnes

A > | - L 1A
relative to revenue (tCO2e/£m) (Market-based) CO2e/£m L7 -7 1.1 11

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) was engaged to provide independent limited assurance
over selected information in the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Information that is within PwC’s limited assurance scope is marked with the symbol * ’

* Group inclusive of UK and International
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OVO Group Ltd

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (cenfinued)

Targets 7

We have set ambitious carbon reduction targets, including achieving net zero carbon emissions across our Scopes I,2and 3
emissions by 2030, underpmned by science-based targets aligned to 1.5°C.

Performance

" There has been an 8% reduction in overall Scope 1 and Scope 2 market-based carbon emissions and a 7% increase in overall
Scope | and Scope 2 location-based carbon emissions between 2018 and 2019. There has been a reduction in carbon;
emissions intensity relative to revenue by 34% (market-based) and 24% (location-based) between 2018 and 2019, meaning
that we are starting to decouple carbon emissions from growth.

Embedding Plan Zero

We are currently embedding Plan Zero within OVO through a substantial orgamsatlonal change programme. For example
we have set up governance structures, such as a Plan Zero steering committee chaired by our Retail CEQ, to ensure
accountability, a new data software system to track progress, and we are incorporating Plan Zero into our culture through our
Values, our employee engagement and ensuring every employee touchpoint refers to our purpose.

Energy efficiency and carbon emissions reduction action - :
.In 2019, we implemented a number of energy and carbon reduction initiatives across our operations and value chain.

(i) Fleet:

We have started lmplementmg a plan to improve the envnronmental impact of our fleet of engineering vehicles. As part of
this, our plan is to replace where possible, all existing petrol and diesel.vehicles with electric vehicles. We’ve hit 30% of
EVs in the OVO Energy fleet and our focus is now getting to our Plan Zero target of 70% by the end of 2020. We are also
introducing measures to improve the energy productivity of the fleet such as trialling fuel- efhcnent driving, e- Iearmng,
enhanced telematics reporting and improved route planning,

In 2018 we had an average of 160 vehicles on our fleet compared with 300 in 2019. This increase has had a significant
impact on our fleet emissions which have increased by 32% between 2018 and 2019. With the initiatives above, we are
hoping to see our fleet emissions level out during 2020.
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OVO Group Ltd

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (cohtinued)

(ii) Bunldmgs :

In 2019, we completed energy audits on our buildings to identify energy efficiency and reduction opportunities. We have
started rolling out a number of measures to improve energy efficiency in our buildings, such as installing LED lighting,
optimising building energy management systems and engaging employees to waste less energy. Energy use at our Bristol
Rivergate head office decreased by 28% between 2018 and 2019 as a result of these measures.

Sustainability and wellbeing considerations were central to the fit out and refurbishment of our new office space in London.
We are expecting the buildings to achieve BREEAM Excellent and SKA Gold and we are waiting for the certifications to
come through'. It also has 56 solar panels producing 15.12'kWp to power the building. Additionally all appliances installed
are A-rated energy efficient and all materials used have gained sustainability certifications - such as workstations and tables
being FSC certified. In addition, all offices where OVO has operational control have been moved to 100% renewable
electricity tariffs. .

These measures have resulted in a 40% reduction in" OVO’s Scope 1 and Scope 2 market-based emissions and a 10%

reduction in location-based emissions from buildings.

(iii) Value chain:

In 2019, we worked with the Carbon Trust to perform a preliminary evaluation of the 15 categories of OVO’s Scope 3
footprint in order to understand our indirect emissions. This confirmed that the carbon footprint of the energy we supply to
our customers (Scope 3 categories: Fuel and energy-related activities and Use of sold products).is by far the most material

‘source of Scope 3 emissions. OQur Scope 3 footprint and science-based target is based on the supply of gas and electricity to

customers.

Through our membership médel, we are developing products and services to reduce the carbon footprint of the energy we
sell. For example, customers can use OVQO’s Carbon Tracker energy and carbon emissions data insights tool to measure their
carbon footprint and get recommended actions on how to reduce it. In addition, we launched OVO Beyond in September

" 2019. OVO Beyond is a membership upgrade which provides 100% renewable electricity and 100% carbon neutral gas, as

well as personalised energy insights on home energy use through smart meter data. A key aim of this new product is to
encourage customers to become a stakeholder in their own carbon footprint, leading to a collective effort in tackling climate -
change. In October 2019 we reduced the carbon intensity of our electricity fuel mix by increasing the minimum proportion of
renewable electricity for our standard tariff from 33% to 50% across all OVO Energy brands.

Reporting methodology

Our reporting approach is aligned with the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard. The Basis of Preparation
document outlining the reporting methodology in detail can be found here: '
www.ovo.com/basis-of-preparation/. .

Assurance
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) was engaged to provide independent limited assurance over selected mformatlon in the

‘Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019. Information thdt is within PwC’s limited assurance

scope is marked with the symbol ~. See PwC’s Assurance Statement here: www.ovo.com/sustainability-assurance-report/.
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OVO Group Ltd

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Section 172 Statement i

Stakeholders are at the heart of our strategy and business model. Engaging with them helps us to understand their evolving
needs and infofms our strategic decision-making.

In Iight of our purpose and our strategy to create a world without carbon and create long term-value for customers, our
Directors take steps to understand the needs and priorities of each stakeholder group and do so via a number of mediums,
including by direct engagement or via committees and forums. The relevance of each stakeholder may. change depending on
the matter at hand. In line with requirements of the UK Companies Act 2006, we provide a high-level summary of how our
Directors engaged with our stakeholders and had regard to their interests when setting OVO’s strategy and taking decisions
concerning the business in 2019. ' '

Our customers

OVO has a history of championing the interests of customers. We provide easy and intuitive solutions so that whether-our
customers are on the phone with ‘our award winning call centre or using our app or our website, they know that we will go
the extra mile and provide the necessary support.

We engage with our customers via multiple touchpoints as well as delivering support in the management of their énergy and
the resolution of issues via.a number of channels. .

We consistently and proactively communicate with all of our customers throughout their life cycle with the OVO brand in
the channel of their choice. Operational communications and regular billing information are delivered by email or post on a
monthly basis. All customers can access their OVO account via an app or desktop service at any. point and are able to
understand théir usage and manage their account at any time they need. For those customers who wish to receive them, we
deliver marketing communications about new products and services that our existing customers may be able to benefit from.

As a business we spend significant time ensuring we understand our current and prospective customers, what they require
from.their energy provider and how we can improve the experience and products that we offer. Our product and marketing
teams regularly research propositional development and brand messaging to ensure everything we create is done with the-
customer in mind. We consistently track NPS, Trustpilot and brand health and use the data gleaned to continuously build and
improve our offering..Regular customer reports are produced for management and are regularly shared with Directors and
the Board. Our Board also receives direct updates from each.of OVO’s customer facing businesses and momtors customer
performance, NPS and feedback.

Brand marketing focuses on how OVO Energy and its unique proposition are able to support our customers® journey to Zero
Carbon Living. The communications we provide are designed to mobilise a community around our Plan Zero objective to
drive progress'to zero carbon living and to support all of our customers in reducing their individual carbon footprint by 50%
by 2030.

Post year end, at the start of the Coronavirus lockdown, we quickly communicated with customers to let them know we’re
here to help those who needed us, and uploaded FAQs to our website to ensure our information was clear, concise and
prompt. Our customers and wider charitable partners told us that some customers were worried about paying their bills
during lockdown and so we responded by setting up the OVO Coronavirus Hardship Scheme, making £50 million available
to support those who had been impacted and were worried about their ability to pay. -
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ovo Group Ltd
Strateglc Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (contmued)

Our people

Without talented and committed employees, we could never deliver on our ambitions. Our people are the -creators of our
. culture and act as our ambassadors. We aspire to create the UK’s best place to work in order for our people to bettel serve
our customers and partner with them on their journey to zero carbon living.

We have already put in place strong foundatlons to help ensure everyone who joins OVO feels like they belong.

This includes:

« An Inclusion and Diversity team, which includes senior management, who champion dlffelent areas and ensure plmClples
of inclusion and diversity are embedded across the business

« Making a public pledge to increase the number of women in traditionally underrepresented roles

» Normalising the conversation around, and increasing awareness of mental health in the workplace through the Time to
Change pledge

* Tracking and reportirig diversity data of both applicants and extstmg employees to ldentlfy challenge areas.

Our quarterly employee survey gives employees at all levels the chance to share views with line managers, colleagues and

leadership. In 2019, we had an average 82% response rate and management support was called out as a key strength. We also

engage regularly with our people through a number of employee forums, company wide town halls and smaller village halls.

All of the data and learnings we receive is shared with the OVO Group Board, and our Chief People Officer attends OVO
_ Group Board meetings in order to communicate and report on employee feedback.

Our planet

- The climate crisis is oné of the greatest challenges we face and awareness of the environmental impact of human activity on
the planet is growing. Key concerns include air pollution, climate change and the destruction of nature and biodiversity.
We’re seeing growing movements for change around the world, as well as a real desire for businesses to limit their impact on
the planet and take .bold action on climate. The OVO Group Board and our Directors have responsibility for key
environmental issues: our CEO works with the Energy Transitions Committee for example and various Directors lead on key
workstreams to deliver Plan Zero and ensure that we have stronig and mutually beneficial relationships with our partners.

Government and Regulators

OVO has dedicated teams who engage regularly with the UK Government and regulators to communicate our business
strategy and support the development of policies, either directly or through our trade associations. Our CEO engages directly
with policy makers and the regulator around OVOQ’s strategic priorities and is kept informed of priority consultations and
regulatory changes. In 2019 we engaged on a number of strategically important issues to help inform and support the policy
development on climate change, the decarbonisation of heat and transport and customer protection. Through this
engagement, we aim to positively contribute to the global drive to tackle climate change and to support the UK
Government’s net-zero by 2050 targets. The OVO Group Board receives regular updates from representations from our Risk
and Compliance Committee. . :

Su ller

Building trusted partnershlps w1th our suppliers is 1mportant in enabling us to provide the best products at the best prices for
our customers. In 2019, as a first step to engage suppliers on Plan Zero, OVO implemented a Supplier Code of Conduct
setting out the standards, principles and values to-which OVO expects its suppliers to adhere.-OVO has asked all existing key
suppliers to provide written confirmation that they will adhere with the Supplier Code of Conduct. Going forward, the
Supplier Code of Conduct will be built into supplier contlact templates meaning that all new suppliers will be required to
adhere with it.

In the future, OVO will bé looking at ways to engage further with suppliers to promote sustainability and responsible
business practices, by including sustainability assessments as part of the procurement process and ensuring sustamablhty
criteria forms a minimum part ofwelghted assessment scoring when new supphexs are being selected. .

;
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OVO Group Ltd
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

.Our communities .

" The OVO Charitable Foundatlon (“OVO Foundation) was created in 2014 with .the mission of ensuring all children and
young people have equitable access to a sustainable future.

OVO Foundation builds sustainable communities around the world by increasing energy access and tackling youth
homelessness. It also focuses on educating children on sustainability and climate change issues to inspire and empower them
to take action. OVO Foundation invests in projects that address a real and genuine need, can demonstrate measurable and
meaningful impact, and provide a high return on investment. It is also committed to funding projects that have potential to
bring about long-term systemic change and can be scaled wherever possible.

Key achievements for the Foundation include:

* Turning 10 derelict properties into 30 safe and affordable homes and workmg with 100s of young homeless people to break
the cycle of homelessness

. Provndmg fundmg to electrify 300+ schools and health chmcs in rural Kenya to improve the lives of 100,000s of people
and leapfrogging the grid to avoid polluting fossil fuels

« Investing £500,000 in local charities and spending 1,000s of volunteering hours to help create sustainable communities

OVO Charitable Foundation is funded partly from customer donations, and partly from the OVO business: at the end of
2019, 65,896 customers_donated to OVO Foundation each month.

Board and company engagement with our stakeholders during strategic moments

The OVO Gi'oup Board recognises that having robust governance structures in place is vital to decision-making. The OVO -
Group Board spends a lot of time listening to and understanding the views of its key stakeholders. When discussing matters
at Board meetings these views form an integral part of its decision-making.

The OVO Group Board is responsible for apploviﬁg the company's strategic plan and evaluates proposed acquisitions in the
context of that plan. The OVO Group Board, (which includes members from our external shareholders), dlscussed and
-approved the acquisition of SSE Energy Senvnces :

During the development of Plan Zero (Nov 2018 - May 2019) OVO engaged a vast number of stakeholders in a detailed
materiality assessment.

* We held 1-2-1 in-depth sessions with Directors, senior leaders and relevant stakeholders across OVO as well as held 12
group sessions. We also sent out a questionnaire to all Directors to ensure they fed into the development of the strategy that
received a 100% response rate.

» We asked all of our employees to complete a survey, and recewed a 50% response rate.

. We sent out-surveys to our customers to seek their feedback on our aims and objectives.

* Plan Zero was discussed and approved by the OVO Group Board, and our CEO was sngmf'cantly mvolved in its
development.

Since the launch of Plan Zero, we have committed to reporting quarterly to the OVO Group Board - with a summary of each

"Plan Zero SteerCo. The OVO Group Board is committed to building trusted paltnerships with our suppliers, which, are
crucial to delivering many of our Plan Zero commitments. Through these partnerships, 'we deliver value and quality to our
customers: .

All matters which under OVO’s governance arrangements are reserved for decision by the Directors are presented at OVO

Group Board meetings. Directors are briefed on any potential impacts and risks for our customers, our people and other
stakeholders including the community and environment and how they are to be managed.

Approved by the Board on 21 Décember 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

/

Vincent Casey
Director
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Oovo Groun Ltd

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Directors' of the group
The directors of the company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the t'nancnal statements were;

Stephen Murphy - Chairman .
Stephen Fitzpatrick A o

Daniel Sasaki

Niall Wass

Adrian Letts (appointed 7 January 2019)

Vincent Casey

Atsushi Suzuki (appointed 13 February 2019)

Principal activity :
The principal activity of the company is the ploculement and sale of UK electricity from the wholesale markets and
renewable sources, the supply of gas and related services, the installation of boilers and provider of boiler and home care
cover as well as the development and smart meter installation.

Dividends
The Directors do ‘ot propose a dividend for the year (2018: no dwndends proposed)

Financial mstrumcnts .

Financial risk management objectives and policies have been established making use of financial instruments for the purpose
‘of managing the exposure of the company to price risk, credit risk, liquidity rlsk and cash flow risk is discussed in Note 28 of
the financial statements.

Charitable donations

During the year the company made charntable donations of £5 72 ,000. Individual donations were:
4 . _ £

The OVO Charitable Foundation 572,000 -

Stakeholder engagement
Details of the group's actions taken during the financial year with regards to stakholder engagement can be found within the
Section 172 Statement included in the Strategic Report.

Employment of disabled persons

One of the Group's core values is treating people fairly, giving equal opportunities to all employees and applicants. The
Group ensures all employees get the same chances for training, development and career progression depending on their,
performance, including any disabled employees. If an employee becomes disabled whilst in employment, the Group will.
make every effort to give the employee suitable responsibilities with reasonable adjustments in their current role, in line with
the Equality Act 2010. Where this is not possible, the Group wili try to find the employee another role within OVO and
provide additional training (as necessary). 4
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OVO Group Ltd.

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Employee involvement

The Group is actively encouraging employee involvement throughout the organisation. The Group holds regular company
wide briefings where the latest information is shared, including financial and economic factors that affect the performance of
the Group. Employee performance and development is reviewed on a quarterly basis and ensured it is in line with the overall
Group's objectives. The Group's employee forum and social commlttee is chaired by its employees for its employees. OVO
Group Ltd additionally has a share scheme for employees.

Further information regarding employee engagement can be found within the Strategic Report.
Future developments
The Directors believe that the Company remains well posmoned in the market place with a differentiated offer. For further

information, visit our website: www.ovoenergy.com. See Strategic Report for the Company's future developments.

Going concern

-2020 is a transformative year for OVO Group Limited. Post year-end, OVO Energy Limited, an indirect subsidiary of ovOo

Group Limited, completed the acquisition of SSE plc’s GB domestic retail business (see note 33). The Group also continued
the optimisation of its business model, especially in light of the new scale of the business, and the challenges arising due to
COVID-19. .

The acquisition of SSE Energy Services provides many benefits to the Group, including the contribution of positive cash
flow generation, and an enhanced liquidity and earnings profile. In addition, as a result of the acquisition; the company has
also agreed a series of financial covenants with its key financial and trading creditors. The financial covenants in place over
the forecast period relate to liquidity, key earnings ratios and the net worth of the company. The group also has a number of
arrangements with its creditors which allows for extended payment terms through the seasonal cycle, in order to manage it's
working capital commitments. These arrangements have associated financial covenants, against which the Group has been
compliant during the period. None of the arrangements were utilised at the end of the financial year.

The directors have performed a detailed assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. As part of this
assessment they considered both the hqundlty position and compliance with financial covenants. This assessment. is
predicated on management’s ‘base case’ financial outlook through to December 2021. The base case takes account of the
following:

- The directors expectation of the continued effect of COV[D 19 on the group, specifically bad debt, customer churn and
smart meter installations;

- Unemployment due to COVID-19 rising above 8% in 2021 impacting expected credit losses expense, and .
- Localised restrictions and requirements for social distancing being in place throughout that period impacting our ability to
mobilise parts of our workforce.

The directors believe that future regulated price caps may reflect these adverse factors. However, the base case is
conservative in that it does not assume any uplift to the price cap in respect of these factors as this mitigating factor is
outside of the company’s direct control.

In addition, the base case has been subject to a set of severe but plausible downside stress tests, including a further increase
in bad debt, a reduction in smart meter installs, an increase in customer churn, and cold/ warm weather scenarios. In the case
of downside stress tests the directors took into account the potential mitigating factors (within their direct control) to protect
the group’s earnings and liquidity.

Under the base case, and the severe downside scenarios considered, the Group has sufficient liquidity to continue as a going
concern, and 'is compliant with all financial covenants throughout 2020 and 2021. Accordingly the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate liquidity, and resources to continue operating for a period of at least 12
months from.the date of approval of the financial statements, and therefore the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Having considered these matters, the directors do not believe there are any material uncertainties to disclose in relation to the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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OVO Group Ltd

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

Directors' liabilities

As’ permltted by the Articles of Association, the Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which is a qualnfymg third party
indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force throughout last
financial year and is currently in force. The Company also purchased and mamtamed throughout the financial year Directors’
and Officers' liability insurance in respect of itself and its Directors.

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information. The directors confirm that thexe is
no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities
The directors aré responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the fi nancial statements in accordance with apphcable law

" and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
prepared the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit
or loss of the group and company for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

. " select suitable accounting policies'and then:app]y them consistently;

. " state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the group financial
_ statements and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the company financial
statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group
" and company will continue in business. .

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group a.nd company and hence for taking reasonable

steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and éxplain the group and
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the group and the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection

of fraud and other irregularities.

Appro'ved by the Board on 21 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Vincent Casey
Director ) .
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OVO Group Ltd

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of OVO Group Ltd

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion, OVO Group Ltd’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements”):.

« give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the.company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the group’s
loss and the group’s and the company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reponing Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the .
European Union and, as regards the company s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the*
Companies Act 2006; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

-We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements (the
“Annual Report”), which comprise: the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December
2019; the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
and Company Statements of Changes in-Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a description of the significant accounting polncnes

‘Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law.

- Our responsibilities under [SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a baSlS for our opinion.

lndependence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical -
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to repon to you
- where: .

« the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;
or : .

» the directors have ngt disclosed in the f' nancial statements any |dent1f ed material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the gloup s and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at
least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. -

However, because not all future events or condmons can be predicted, thlS statement is not a guaranteg as to the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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"~ OVO Group Ltd ’
Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of OVO Group Ltd (continued)

Reporting on other information-

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we ‘are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilities

With respect to the Strategic Report and Dnectors Repon we also consndered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responSibillties described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also
to report certain opinions and matters as described below. .

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken .in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 is consnstent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements. - ' - :

“In- Itght of the knowledge and uriderstanding of the gioup and company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we dld not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 14, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial. statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give
“a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue ds a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accouriting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operatlons or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mﬂuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.
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OVO Group Ltd

Independént Auditor's Report to the Members of OVO Group Ltd (continued)

Use of this report
This report, including the opii_nions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or .
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
‘come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

: - )
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

» certain disclosures of c\lirectors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Katharine Finn (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

2 Glass Wharf
Bristol
BS2 OFR

21 December 2020
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OVO Group Ltd

" . Consolidated Income Statement for the -Year Ended 31 Decembér 2019

2018
2019 Restated*
Note £ 000 £ 000
Revenue o ‘ 4 1,448,755 1,042,048
Cost of sales . . (1,303,036) (948,384)
Gross profit . : 145,719 . 93,664
Administrative expenses - . (230,034) (151,74_4)
Expected credit loss ' ’ (24,902) ) (12,264)
Other operating income i 5 : 2,657 . 962
Other gains ‘ ‘ 6 2,770 19,495
Operatingloss ~ ~ - . . ' 7 (103,790) ‘ (49,887)
Finance income - ‘ 667 174
Finance costs i ) (3,930) (2,381)

* Net finance cost .28 (3,263) . (2,207)
Share of loss of associaies accounted for using the equity n{ethod . ) (547) ' (176)
Loss before tax e ' (107,600) O (52270)
Income tax receipt . . ’ . : 11 . 1,415 11,074
Loss for the year ’ : (106,185) '(41,196)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: ) . . . .

Owners of the parent (106,127) (40,922)
Non-controlling interests : ) (58) (274)
(Loss)/profit for the year - (106,185) (41,196)

*Refer to Note 16 for details of prior period restatement resulting from the finalisation of acquisition accounting.

.
The above results were derived from continuing operations.

There are no items of other comprehensive income within the current or prior year.

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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OVO Group Ltd

: .. (Registration number: 08862063)
Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipmeni

Intangible assets

Right of use assets

Deferred tax assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments accounted for using the equity method

Current assets
Inventories- )

Trade and other receivables
Income tax asset

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables -
Lease Liabilities
Deferred income
Provisions

Non-current liabilities
. Loans and borrowings
Lease liabilities

Total liabilities
‘Net (liabilities)/assets

Equity .

Share capital

Share premium.

Other reserves

(Accumulated lbsses)/Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Ndn-contr(?lling interests

Total equity .

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group Company
2018

2019 Restated * 2019 - 2018

Note £000 £000 £ 000 £000
12 4,173 2,361 42 15
13 125,753 114,648 4,841 178
14 18,947 - 487 -
11 11,288 12,669 1,181 351
15 - - 195,594 87,898
15" 857 24 - o
161,018 129,702 202,145 88,442

17 9,828 4,909 - -
18 . 142,293 92,333 122,566 69,963
3,619 836 SRR -

19 23,379 - 81,045 150 366
179,118 179,123 122,716 . 70,329

340,136 308,825 324,861 158,771

20 (265,804) (204,078) (19,905) (47,990)
21 (2,529) - (504) ' -
L (89,595) (112,315) - -
25 (11,572) (2,923) (8,876) -
(369,500) (319,316) (29,285) (47,990)

29 - (33,934) - .
21 - (18,084) - - -
(18,084) (33,934) - - -

(387,584) (353,250) (29,285) (47,990)

(47448) - (44,425) 295576 110,781

22 - - - .
131,544 28,988 133,496 -30,941

2,180 1,975 80,160 79,946

(181,172) (75,045) 81,920 (106)
(47,448) (44,082) 295,576 110,781

- (343) - -

(47,448) (44,425) . 295,576 110,781



ovo Group Ltd
(R‘egistration number: 08862063)

.Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019
- (continued)

* See Note 16 for details regarding the prior period restatement resulting from the finalisation of acquisition accounting.

. No income statement is presented for the co'inpany as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.\The company
made a loss for the financial year of £18,774,000 (2018 - loss of £1,516,000).

Approyéd by the Board on 21 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Vincent Casey
Director

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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0ovVo Group Ltd
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Attributable to owners of the parent

Non-
Share Other - Accumulated controlling Total
premium reserves losses Total - interests - equity
: L £000° £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At I January 2018 ] ’ 28,7100 - 1,887 (34,123) . (3,526) - (3,526)
Loss for the year* Co- - . (40,922) (40,922) ' (274) (41,196)
New share capital subscribed 278 - - 278 - 278
Share based payment - -
transactions - - 202 . - 202 - 202
Acquisition of ' : ' :
non-controlling interest, : ’
decrease/ (increase) in equity - Co- - - (69) ' (69)
Movement in foreign N . e ‘ o
currency translation reserve - - (114) - (114) - (114)
At 31 December 2018 28,988 " 1,975 (75,045) (44,082) . - (343) - (44,425)

*Refer to Note 16 for details of prior period restatement resulting from the finalisation of acquisition accounting.

'

Attributable to owners of the parent

. : Non- :
Share "~ Other Accumulated - controlling "~ Total
premium reserves losses " Total . interests equity
. £000 £000 £ 000 £000 . £ 000 £000
At | January 2019 . - 28,988 1,975 (75,045)  (44,082) (343)  (44,425)
Loss for the year - . - - (106,127) * (106,127) T (58)  .(106,185)
New share capital : : - ' : '
subscribed 102,556 . S - 102,556 - 102,556
Share based payment : ' o : L
transactions ] - 214 - - 214 - 214
Decrease in ’ ’
non-controlling interest in ) ) ) .
subsidiaries ' - - - - _ 401 401
" Movement in foreign '
currency translation reserve - 9) - 9) - 9)
At 31 December 2019 o 131,544 - 2,180 (181,172) (47,448) - (47,448)

. The notes on pages 26 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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OVO Group Ltd-

Conﬁpany Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

At | January 2018
Loss for the year )

" New share capital subscribed
Share based payment transactions

At 31 December 2018 -

At 1 January 2019
Loss for the year

Unrealised gain on corporate restructure’

New share capital subscribed
Share based payment transactions

At 31 December 2019

: Retained
" earnings/
» Merger & other (Accumulated
Share premium reserves Losses) Total
£000 £000 £000 £ 000
30,663 79,744 1,410 111,817
- - (1,516) (1,516)
278 - - 278
- 202 = 202
30,941 79,946 (106) 110,781
Retained
) earnings/
‘ Merger & Other (Accumulated :
Share premium reserves losses) Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
30,941 79,946 (106) 110,781
- - (18,774). (18,774)
- - 100,800 100,800
102,553 - E - 102,555
- 214 - 214
133,496 80,160 81,920 295,576

) : , .
The notes on pages 26 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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OVO Group Ltd

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year . i
Adjustments to cash flows from non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisatjon A
Impairment of intangible assets

Gain on bargain purchase

Profit on disposal of intangible assets

Profit from disposals of subsidiaries

Foreign exchange gain

Finance income '

- Finance costs

Research and development expenditure credit
Share based payment transactions '
Share of loss of equity accounted investees
 Income tax (receipt)/expense

Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/decrease in inventories’
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income
Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Acquisitions of property plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Acquisition of associates ‘ '
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
Payment of deferred consideration

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities -
Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares, net of issue costs

Repayment of bank borrowing
Payments to finance ledse creditors

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

- 28
28

© 24

11

17
18
20
25

.28
12
13

16

28
22

)

2019 2018 Restated*
£000 £ 000
(106,185) (41,196)
22,076 9,836
3,557 S
(1,195) (18,889).
- (606)
(1,575) -
©® (92)
(667) ’ (174)
3,930 2,381
" (2,657) -
214 202
547 176
(1,415) (11,074)
(83,379) (59,436)
(4,919) 2,416
(49,959) (25,066)
46,214 53,261
8,649 2,183
(22,720) 38,368
(1,104) -
(107,218) 11,726
667 174
(3,273) (715)
(10,919) (1,788)
. 1,602
(257) (750)
(1,380) -
1,800 _ -
- (5,000)
(13,362) (6,477)
(3,930). 2,381
102,555 -
(33,934) .
(1,777) -
62,914 (2,381)
(57,666) 2,868



OVO Group Ltd

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 De'cember 2019

(continued) 4 o
2019 2018 Restated™* -
_ Note £ 000 ©£000
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January - ' 81,045 78,177
Cash and cash equivalénts at 31 December 23,379 81,045

*Refer to Note 16 for details of prior period restatement of Gain on bargain purchase resulting from the finalisation of
acquisition accounting. a . :

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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OVO Group Ltd

| Company Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year -

Adjustments to cash flows from nj(on-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation . '
Foreign exchange gain '

Finance income

Finance costs o

Share based payment transactions

Income tax expense/(receipt)

Working capital adjustments

Decrease in trade and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions ’

Net cash flow generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received -
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries

Acquisitions of property plant and equjpmeni
Acquisition of intangible assets

Acquisitions of subsidiaries

Net cash flows from investing activities ‘

Cash flows from financing activities \
" Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares, net of issue costs
Payments to finance lease creditors

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Note

28
28

18
.20
25

28 .

12
13

16

28
22

2019 2018
£ 000 £ 000
(18,774) (1,516)°

229 1
@) (113)
" (5;570) (4,059)
1,712 2,599
214 278
(830) (352)
(23,021) (3,162)
(60,601) (13,654)
(28,524) 14,967
8,876 -
(103,270) (1,849)
5,570 4,059
1,800 -
(39) (16)
(4,663) (178)
(257) (1,361)
2,411 2,504
(1,712) (2,599)
102,555 ' -
(200) -
100,643 (2,599)
@16) (1,944)
366 2,310
366

150

The notes on pages 26 to 76 form an integrdl part of these financial statements.
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OVO Group Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

1  General information )
The company is a private company limited by share capital, incorporated and domiciled in United Kingdom.

The address of its registered office is:
1 Rivergate ’
Temple Quay

Bristol

BS1 6ED

UK

These financial statements w«:ré'authorised for issue by the Board on 21 December 2020.

2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uﬁcertainty

_The key estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements are in respect of
revenue recognition, impairment of trade receivables, recognition of deferred tax assets and business combinations.

Revenue recognition - energy supplied but not yet measured (estimation uncertainty)
Revenue from energy supplied to OVO customers includes an estimate of the value of electricity or gas supplied to
customers between the date of the latest meter reading and the financial year end.

This estimate comprises both billed revenue (trade receivables) and unbilled revenue (accrued income) and is calculated with
reference to the tariffs and contractual rates applicablé to customers against estimated customer consumption. Estimated
customer consumption takes into account various factors including usage patterns, weather trends and notified aggregated
volumes supplied to the customers from national settlements bodies.

A change in the assumptions underpinning the calculation would have an impact on the amount of revenue recognised in any
given period. . : '

This estimate is subject to an internal validation process which compares calculated unbilled volumes to a theoretical
real-time. billing benchmark measure of unbilled volumes with reference to historical consumption patterns adjusted for
seasonality/weather and aggregated metering data used in industry reconciliation processes. Unbilled revenue recognised on
the Group Balance Sheet was £74,234,000. A 1% change in revenue would have a £1,222,000 impact on the unbilled
revenue recognised. ) )

Impairment of trade receivables (estimation uncertainty)
Impairments against trade. receivables are recognised where the loss is expected. The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected credit loss allowance for all trade receivables
and contract assets. For energy customers the impairment is calculated by splitting the portfolio into segments and The
Directors have based their assessment of the level of impairment on collection rates experienced within each segment to
date. The estimates and assumptions used to determine the level of provision will continue to be reviewed periodically and
could lead to changes in the impairment provision methodology which would impact the income statement in future years.

The assumption that future performance of customer debt settlement will be a reflective of past performance is the most .
significant assumption within the expected credit loss provisioning model. To address this risk, The Group reviews the-
provision rates for each segment on a regular basis to ensure they the most up to date assumptions and use forward looking

information. In order to test the sensitivity of the impairment of the Group's.trade receivables balance, the Group has

considered-the impact of an addition aging of Trade Receivables which requires an extra 0.5% of Revenue being provided

for. This would lead to a £2,863,000 increase in the expected credit loss provision in 2019. .
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2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uAncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets (accounting judgement and uncertainty)

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary dlfferences giving rise to deferred
tax assets where the directors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered, i.e. that future taxable amounts (e.g.
taxable profits) will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. The carrying amount of the deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. The recoverability of deferred tax -
"assets relating to losses is based on forecasts of future taxable profits which are, by their nature, uncertain.

The Gnoup prepares medium-term forecasts based on Boald -approved budgets. These are used to suppon judgements made
in the prepal atlon of the Group s financial statements including the recognition of deferred tax assets.

I-{avmg assessed the level profits made by the Group since the year end and forecasts of revenue and costs for the coming
years, the directors believe it is probable that the Group will generate sustamable profits and therefore a deferred tax asset
has been recogmsed .

The Group remains exposed to the risk of changes m law that impact the Group s ability to carry fowvald and utilise tax
attributes :ecogmsed as deferred tax assets.
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3 Accounting policies

All accounting policies noted below relate to the Group and Company, except for those that exphcntly state that they relate to
the Company only.

Statement of comphance
The group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standalds and its
interpretations adopted by the EU ("adopted IFRS's"). :

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accountmg estimates :
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These pollcles
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. -

BaS|s of preparation

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted by the European Union and interpretations as issued by IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS 1C) and the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting unden IFRS. The fi nancual statements have been prepared under the
historical cost conventlon

No income statement is presented for the company as penm;tted by section 408 of the Compames Act 2006. The company
made a profit for the financial year of £18,774,000 (2018 - loss of £1,516 ,000).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgemient in the process of applying the group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 2.

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in ‘Pounds Sterling’ (£), which is the
Group’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Prior year restatement

Comparative information for prior perlods presented in the fnanmal statements have been revised as a result of adjustments
made against the provisional amounts recognised resulting trom the business combination undertaken in the prior year. As:
required under IFRS 3 Business Combinations, the adjustments have been recognised as if they occurred on the acquisition
date. Refer to Note 16 for further details. :

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 2020 is a transformative year for OVO Group
Limited. Post year-end, OVO Energy Limited, a subsidiary of OVO Group Limited, completed the acquisition of SSE plc’s
GB domestic retail business (see Note 33). The Group also continued the optimisation of its business model, especially in
light of the new scale of the business, and the challenges arising due to COVID-19.

The acquisition of SSE Energy Services provides many benefits to the Group, including the contribution of positive cash
flow generation, and an enhanced liquidity and earnings profile. In addition, as a result of the acquisition, the company has
also agreed a series of financial covenants with its-key financial and trading creditors. The financial covenants in place over
the forecast period relate to liquidity, key earnings ratios and the net worth of the company. The group also has a number of
arrangements with its creditors which allows for extended payment terms through the seasonal cycle, in order to manage it's
working capital commitments. These arrangements have associated financial covenants, against which the Group has been
compliant during the period, None of the arrangements were utilised at the end of the financial year.
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The directors have performed a detailed assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. As part of this

" assessment they considered both the liquidity position and compliance with financial covenants. This assessment is
predicated on management’s ‘base case’ financial outlook through to Decembel 2021. The base case takes account of the
following:

-« The directors expectation of the continued effect of COVID-19 on the group, specnﬁcally bad debt customer churn and
smart meter installations;

« Unemployment due to COVID-19 rising above 8% in 2021 impacting expected credit losses expense; and

« Localised restrictions and requirements for social distancing being in place throughout that period impacting our ability to
mobilise parts of our workforce.

The directors believe that future regulated price caps may reflect these adverse factors. However, the base case is
conservative in that it does not assume any uplift to the price cap in respect of these factors as this mitigating factor is
outside of the company’s direct control.

1In addition, the base case has been subject to a set of severe but plausible downside stress tests, including a further increase
in bad debt, a reduction in smart meter installs, an increase in customer churn, and cold/ warm weather scenarios. In the case
of downside stress tests the directors took into account the potential mitigating factons (within their direct control) to protect
the group’s earnings and quuidity

Under the base case, and the severe downside scenarios considered, the Group has sufficient liquidity to continue as a going
concern, and is compliant with all financial covenants throughout 2020 and 2021. Accordingly the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate liquidity, and resources to continue operating for a period of at least 12
months from the date of approval of the financial statements, and therefore the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis. .

Having considered these matters, the directors do not believe there are any material uncertainties to disclose in relation to the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Basis of consolidation : '
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings drawn
up to 31 December 2019.

.A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control i is achieved where the company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the Group.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the group. Corporate restructuring, which does not meet the definition of a business combination, are accounted for
through the application of predecessor accounting.The cost of a business combination is measured as the fair value of the
assets given,-equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised-is recorded as goodwnll

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties; are eliminated in full.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the group. Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the group’s
equity therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the non-controlling shareholder’s share of changes-in equity since the date of the combination. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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3 Accounting policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policy

New standards, interpretations and amendments effective
The following have been applied for the first time from | January 2019 and have had an effect on the financial statements:

IFRS 16 Leases

The Group had to change its accounting pOllClCS as a result of adopting IFRS 16. The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases
retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the
specific transition provisions in the standard. The réclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasmg rules are
therefore recognised in the openmg balance sheet on 1 January 2019. :

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease llabllltles in relation to leases which had previously been classified as

-‘operating leases’ under the principles of 1AS I7 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining léase payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of | January 2019. The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 7%.

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standaxd

« applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

« accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as short-term
leases

« excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application, and

* using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease

The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were measured on a modlﬁed retrospective basis as if the new rules had
always been applled :

Reconciliation of the impact of adoption is set out below:

A " Group Company
i _ . £'000 . £000
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 22,300 -

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of at-the date of initial application  (1,494) -

Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as.at 31 December 2018 . - 389 ' -

(Less): shbn-term‘ leases not recognised as a liability : (827) ' -

Add/(less): contracts reassessed as lease contracts ) 3,133 - 705

Add/(less): adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and termination ‘ .
(1,107) -

options _ .

Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 . 22,390 ' 708

Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019

Group Company
_ £'000 . £000
Right-of-use-assets - increase by : : ' 22,390 ‘_ 705

Lease liabilities - increase by . 22,390 . 705
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3 Accountmg policies (continued)

Other new accounting standards and amendments

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual |eportmg penod
_.commencing 1 January 2019: .
.- Prepayment Features with Negative Compensatlon Amendments to IFRS 9

- Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments to IAS 28 -

- Annual Tmprovements to IFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle ‘

- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement - Amendments to IAS 19

- Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments.

None of these other standards, interpretations and amendments effective for the first time from 1 January 2019 have had a
material effect on the financial statements. '

New standards, interpretations and amendmcnts not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not'mandatory for 31 Decembér 2019
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to have a materlal impact
on the entlty in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Revenue recognition
Recognition

The company earns revenue from the provision of services relating to Revenues are generated primarily from the sale of
electricity and gas to customers. This revenue is recognised in the accounting period when the services are rendered at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for fulfilling its performance
obligations to customers. '

The principles in IFRS are applied to revenue recognition criteria using the following 5 step model:

1. ldentify the contracts with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5. Recogmse revenue when or as the entity satisfies its perfoxmance obligations

Transaction price
In determmmg the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant

financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer. (if any).

(i) Variable consideration :
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, revenue is only recognised in ah amount at which a significant
reversal is improbable in the future. - o

(n) Consideration payable to a customer : .
If the contract contains consideration payable to a customen the consideration payable is accounted for as a reduction ot the ’
transaction price. .

Contract assets and Peceivables

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services provided to the customer. If the Company
. provides goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset,
accrued income, is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,-only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due). ’
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_Contract liabilities

~ A contract liability is the obligation to provide goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is du€) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company provides goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contnact liabilities, deferred income, are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

Net basis of measurement of contract balances

Contract asset and contract liability positions are determined for each contract on a net basis. This is because the rights and
obligations within each contract are considered inter-dependent. Where two contracts are with the same.or related entities, an
assessment is made of whether contract assets and liabilities are inter-dependent and if so, contract balances are reported net. -

.
Capitalisation of colsts to obtain or Jfulfil a contract

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are recognised as an asset if certain criteria are met. The Company incurs

broker commissions for customers who have signed-up through broker sites. The Company has elected to apply the optional -

practical expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the Company to immediately expense customer acquisition
. costs because the amortisation period of the asset that the Company otherwise would have used is one year or less.

~ Finance income and costs policy
Financing expense comprises interest payable on Ioans and is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
Financing income comprises interest receivable on funds invested and on loans to group undertakings.

* Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend
income is recogmsed in the income statement on the date the entity’s right to receive payments is established. Foreign
currency gains and losses are leported on a net basis.

Foreign currency transactions and financial statements of foreign operations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the respective functional

currency of the entity at the rates prevailing on the reporting period date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
. denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the initial transaction dates.

Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into sterling at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated into sterling at rates approximating to the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange differences ansmg on retranslation of foreign operations are
recognised in the foreign currency translatlon reserve.

Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a
change attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly .in
other comprehensive income. .

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantlvely enacted
by the reporting date in the countries where the group operates and generates taxable income.
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Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for:
the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that-affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will
probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date. )

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is plobable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated in the statement of fnancnal position at cost, less any subsequent accumulated
dep1ec1at10n and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes duectly attributable mcnemental costs incurred in their acquisition and
installation.

Depreciation
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and propertles under construction over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset class ) Depreciation method and rate

Land and buildings . . Period of the lease

Furniture, fittings and equipment 3 years straight line

Office Equipment . ’ 3 years straight line
- Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity replesents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group s interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recognised at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired-entity and revalued to the closing rate at each reporting
period date.

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is tested for impairment.
Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in the income statement. On disposal of a subsidiary or a

Jomtly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss recognised
m the income statement on disposal.
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Intangible assets
Customer-related intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised at _fair value at the acquisition date.

Customer-related intangible assets have a finite useful life and are camed at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. -

Acquired computer software and licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to écquire and bring to use the
specific software.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met: .

- it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

- it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are available;
and :

- the expenditure attributable to the soﬁware product during its development can be rellably measured

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant attributable overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recogmsed as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software and licences acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Amortisation’

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets, other than goodwill, so as to write off the cost, less any estlmated residual
value, over their expected useful economic life as follows:

Asset class B . . Amortisation method and rate
IT software and internally developed software costs 3 - 5 years straight line
Contractual customer relationships . ’ ) Over the expected life of the contract

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually. for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
-asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which-there are largely independent cash flows (cash-generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial
assets (other than goodwnll) are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date.

Investments
The Company only policy is that investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost, less any impairment.
Cash and cash equivalents. ' : -

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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3 "Accounting policies (continued)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are pledommantly amounts due from customers fon the sale of electncnty and gas or other services
performed in the ordinary course of the Group’s business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade recéivables do not carry any interest and are held at transaction price less an appropriate impairment recognised where
the loss is probable. The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected credit loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. Further detail on this model and
application within these accounts can be found within the Critical accounting estimates note

Inventories

" Under the provisions of the Utilities Act 2000, ail electri 1cnty suppliers are required to procure a set percentage of thelr
supplies from accredited renewable electricity generators. This obligation can be fulfilled-by the purchase and surrender of
Renewables Obligation Certificates (ROCs) originally issued to generators, or, by making payment to Ofgem who then
recycle the payments to purchasers of ROCs. In addition to the regulatory requirements, the Group surrenders additional
ROCs to demoistrate its environmental credentials transparently. The accounting policy distinguishes between the cost of
the Group s obligations within the regulatory regime and the tactical disposition towards purchasing arid holding ROCs. The
cost obligation is recognised as it arises and is charged to the income statement for the year to which the charge relates as a
reduction in gross margin. Gains or losses on disposal of ROCs are included in the income statement as and when they
crystallize. The stock of ROCs carried forward is valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost is based
on the first-in first-out principle.

Smart meter inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method. Net realisable valué is the estimated selling price in-the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling
expenses.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are pnesented as non-current liabilities. :

Tlade payables are recognised lmtlally at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effectlve interest method.

Borrowings

All borrowings are mmally recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of transaction costs. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of.transaction costs, and the amount
due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the income statement over the period of the relevant borrowing.

Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs.-

Bouowmgs are classified as current liabilities unless the gnoup has an uncond:tlonal right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Fees paid on the establishment of Ioan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan.to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capntallsed as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. .
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)

- Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation and a.reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. .

“Provisions are measuled at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure lequned to settle the obllgatlon at the leportmg
date and are discounted to present value where the effect is matenal

Share based payments

OVO Group Ltd operates a number of equity-settled, share based compensation plans under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity instruments .(options) of OVO Group Ltd. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

mcludmg any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's share price);
- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example, sales growth largets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and
- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expectéd
to vest., The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over whnch all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. S . .

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services in advance of the grant date and therefore, the grant dé_te
fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between service commencement period
and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, OVO Group Ltd revises their estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. They recognise the impact of the revision to original estimates, 1f any, in
the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. .

When the options are exercised, OVO Group Ltd issue new shares. The proceeds recelved net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by OVO Group Ltd of options over their equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the
Group (such as to employees of OVO Energy Ltd) is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of employee-services
received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

The social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of the share options is considered an integral part of
the grant itself, and the charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction. .

Employee benefits .

The Company operates a flexible benefit scheme for qualifying employees whereby in addition to their salary, those
employees are invited to select certain benefits with a value up to 4% of their base pay. All costs related to the scheme are
expensed in the income statement in the year which services are rendered by employees. One of the available benefits is
payment to a defined contribution pension plan. This is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay furthel amounts. The
Company has enrolled in the automatic pension scheme since November 2013.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the

Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past servicé provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. . ’
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A Leases
The below policy has been. applled in 2019 following the adoptxon of [FRS I6 as noted above.

In the previous year, the company only recognised lease assets and lease Inabllltles in relation to leases that were classified as
‘finance leases’ under IAS 17 Leases. Leases in which substaintially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor were classified as 'operating leases'. Payments made under operating leases were charged to proﬂt or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Definition

A lease is a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset or a physically distinct part of an asset ("the
.underling asset") for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Further, the contract must convey the righit to the Group
to control the asset or a physically distinct portion thereof. A contract is deemed to convey the right to control the underlymg
asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the right to:

« Obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use-of the underlying asset, and;

» Direct the use of the underlying asset (eg-direct how and for what purpose the asset is used)

Initial recognition and measurement

The group initially recognises a lease hablllty for the obligation to make lease payments and a rlght-of-use asset for the right
to use the underlying asset for the lease term.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price (where payment is reasonably certain), expected amount of
residual value guarantees, termination option penalties (where payment is considered reasonably certain) and variable lease
payments that depend on an index or rate.

The right-of-use asset is mmally measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments lease
incentives received, the group’s initial direct costs (e.g., commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and
dismantling costs. .

Subsequent measurement

After the commencement date, the group measures the lease liability by:

(a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;’

(b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(c) Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modnﬁcatlons or to reflect revised in substance
fixed lease payments or on the occurrence of other specific events.

Interest on the lease hablllty in each penod durmg the lease term is the amount that produces a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. Interest charges are presented.separately as non-operating /included in
finance cost in the income statement, unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of another asset applying other
applicable standards. Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability, are included in
operating expenses in the period in which the event or condmon that triggers them arises.

The related right-of-use asset is accounted for using the Cost model 1 in IAS 16 and depreciated and charged in accordance
with the depnecnatlon requirements of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in the accounting policy for
Property, Plant and Equipment. Adjustments are imade to the carrying value of the right of use asset where the lease liability
is re-measured in accordance with the above. Right of use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36
Impairment of assets as disclosed in the accounting policy in impairment.
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3 Accounting policies (continued)

Lease modifications

If a lease is modified, the modified contract is evaluated to determine whether it is or contains a lease. [f'a lease ‘continues to
exist, the lease modification will result in either a separate lease or a change in the.accounting for the existing lease.

The modification is accounted for as a separate lease if both:

(a) The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(b) The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract. )
If both of these conditions are met, the lease modification results in two separate leases, the unmodified original lease and a
separate lease. The group then accounts for these in line with the accounting policy for new leases. '

If either of the conditions are not met, the modified lease is not accounted for as a separate lease and the consideration is
allocated to the contract and the lease liability is re-measured using the lease term of the modified lease and the discount rate
as determined at the effective date of the modification.

For a modification that fully or partially decreases the scope of the lease (e.g., reduces the square footage of leased space),
IFRS 16 requires a lessee to decrease the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect partial or full termination of the
lease. Any difference between those adjustments is recognised in profit or loss at the effective date of the modification.

For all other lease modifications which are not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the lessee to recognise the
amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the corresponding right- of-use asset without affecting
profit or loss.

Short term and low value leases

The group has made an accounting policy election, by class of tinderlying asset, not to recognise lease assets and lease
liabilities for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (i.e., short-term leases).

The group has made an accounting policy election on a lease-by-lease basis, not to recognise lease assets on leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value.

Lease payments on short term and low value leases are accounted for on a straight line bases over the term of the lease or
other systematic basis if considered more appropriate. Short term and low value lease payments are included in operating
expenses in the income statements.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables and borrowings.

The group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Finaneial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, representing
the proceeds received net of premiums, discounts and transaction costs that aré directly attributable to the financial liability.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair value through profit or loss -
(“FVTPL”) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the group commits to purchase or sell the financial assets
or financial liabilities. All regular way purchases and sales of other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the settlement date, i.e. the date on which the asset or liability is received from or delivered to the counterparty. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame generally established

_ by regulation or convention in the market place.

Subsequent to -initial measurement, financial assets and financial habnlmes are measured at either amortised cost or fair
value. .
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3 Accouﬁting policies (continued).

Classification and measurement
Financial instruments are classified at inception into one of the following categories, which then determine the subsequent
measurement methodology:-

Financial assets are classnﬁed into one of the followmg three categorles -

- financial assets at amortised cost;

- financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or
- financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial liabilities are classified into one of the following two categories:-
- financial liabilities at amortised cost; or
- financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification and the basis for measurement are subject to the group’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow char acterlstncs of the financial assets, as detailed below:-

Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following condmons and is not designated as at
FVTPL:-
- the assets are held within a business model whose objectivé is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
 the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash ﬂows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

. If either of the above two criteria is not met, the financial assets are classified and measured at fair value through the profit or
loss (FVTPL).

If a financial asset meets the amortised cost criteria, the group may choose to designate the financial asset at FVTPL. Such
an election is irrevocable and applicable only if the FVTPL classification significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency. .

Financial liabilities at amortised cost .
All financial liabilities, other than those classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Commodity derivatives

Within its regular course of business, the Group routinely enters into sale and purchase transactions for physical delivery of
electricity and gas: Where the contract was entered into and continues to be held for the purpose of meeting forecast
customer usage, the contacts are desngnated as Own Use” contracts and are measured at cost. These contracts are not within
the scope of IFRS 9. ‘ :

Defined contribution pension obligation :

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a separate entity and the
Company has no legal or constr uctive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the cuuent and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans contributions are paid publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a

mandatory or contractual basis. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. If
contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognised as an asset.
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4 Revenue:

The analysis of the group's revenue for the year from continuing operations is set out below.

Sale of gas and electricity
Installation of smart meters
Sale of home and emergency cover
Other revenue S

5 Other operating income -

. The analysis of the group's other operating income for the year is as follows:

Research and development expenditure credit

6 Other gains

The analysis of the grbup's other gains and losses for the year is as follows:

Gain on disposal of intangible assets

" Gain on bargain purchase
. Gain on disposal of subsidiary

2018

2019
£000 £000
1,362,198 951,056
46,647 68,504
17,076 15,955
22,834 6,533
1,448,755 1,042,048
-2019 2018
£000 £ 000
2,657 962 -
: 2018
2019 Restatement*
£000 £ 000
- 606
1,195 18,889
1,575 -
2,770 19,495

*Refer to Note 16 for details of prior period restatement of Gain on bargain purchase resulting from 'the finalisation of

acquisition accounting.
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7  Operating (loss)/profit
_ Arrived at after charging/(crediting) . .
' 2019 2018

£000 £000
- Depreciation éxpense ’ 1,461 : 1,939
_Depreciation expense - right of use asset . : 3,443 ..
Amortisation expense - - . K . ‘ 17,172 7,897
Impairment loss : ‘ 3,557 ' .
Foreign exchange gams/(losses) : ) ) o 352 92)
Operating lease expense - property A - . 2,868
-8  Staff costs
The aggregate payroll costs (including directors’ remuneration) were as follows:
. . 20019 2018
. : . £000 . £ 000
Wages and salaries : o . 71,739, 61,832
Social security costs 6,173 5,753
Pension costs, defined contribution scheme . 2,057 ' 1,350 -
Share-based payment expenses . ) . y 214 202
Other employee expense ' 5,911 334
86,094 69,471

Payroll costs of £4,708,000 have been'capitalised in the current year (2018: £nil).

The aggrégate payroll costs ‘included in the Company accounts during the yeal was £8, 726 000 (20]8 £2,292,000),
mcludmg pension costs of £255,000 (2018: £43 000)

The monthly average numben of persons employed (including directors) during the year, analysed by cateoory was as
follows:

2019 2018

) ] . No. No.
Administration and support ) 1,047 1,050
Sales, marketing and distribution o 1,024 ' 1,060
2,071 " 2,110
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N

8  Staff costs (continued)

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Company (iriclqding directors) during the year, analysed by

category was as follows: :

2019 2018

No. No.

Administration and support ) . 38 24
9 Directors' remuneration

_The directors' remunergtion for the year was as follows:

2019 2018

. _ £ 000 £000

Remuneration ' . 1,123 1,029

Contributions paid to pension scheme : - ' 23 16

' 1,146 1,045

~ The highest paid director in.the year received remuneration of £599,440 (2018 - £550,100 ) and contributions to the pension
scheme of £10,850 (2018 - £8,000). Two of the Group directors received benefits through long-term incentive schemes.

10 Auditors' remuneration

Fees for the audit of the Group and the Company was £251,000 (2018: £179,000)

Fees‘for non-audit services of the Group was £3,020,000 (2018:£87,000). Other services predominately related to services in -

respect of the acquisition of SSE Energy Services Limited.

/
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. 11. Taxation

Tax charged/(credited) in the income statement

Current taxation
Total tax charge
UK corporation tax adjustment to prior periods

Deferred taxation )

Arising from origination and reversal of temporary differences
Arising from changes in tax rates and laws

Adjustment in respect of prior periods

Total deferred taxation

_ Tax receipt in the income statement

2019 2018
£000 £000
(598) (11,074)
1,576 : -

978 (11,074)

@111 -

364 -
1,354 -
(2,393) -
(1,415) (11,074)

The tax on profit before tax for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (2018 - higher than the

standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) of 19% (2018 - 19%)).

The differences are reconciled below:

‘Loss before tax

Cor poxatlon tax at standard rate
" Decrease (increase) from effect of revenues exempt from taxatlon

Increase (decrease) from effect of expenses not deductible in determining
taxable profit (tax loss) :

Decrease (increase) from tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was
recognised :
Losses surrendered payable to group company

“ Increase (decrease) in UK current tax from adjustment for prior periods
Increase (decrease) in current tax from unrecognised temporary difference from
a prior period
Deferred tax expense (credit) from unrecogmsed temporary difterence from a
prior period
UK Deferred tax expense (credit) relating to changes in tax rates or laws
Increase (decn'ease) from effect of adjustment in research development tax credit

Total tax credit
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2018

2019
£000 £000
(107,600) (52,270)
(20,443) (9,931)
- (3,108) (3,280)
3,893 1,362
15,023 60
- (195)
2,930 -
- (203)
.- 151
559 1,271
(269) .
(1,415) (10,765)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued) |

11 Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax

Group

Deferred tax movement during the year:

Accelerated tax depreciation

Tax losses carry-forwards
Revaluation of intangible assets
Pension benefit obllgatlons

Net tax assets/(llabnlltles)

Deferred tax movement during the prior year:

Accelerated tax depreciation
Tax losses carry-forwards "
Revaluation of intangible assets
Pension benefit obligations

Net tax assets/(liabilities)

Recognised on

, At

At 1 January. - Recognised in business 31 December

2019 income combinations 2019

£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000

665 159 - 824

22,656 . (57) - 21,899

(10,664) . 2,924 (3,774) (Il 514)

12 67 - 79

12,669 2,393 (3,774) 11,288
Recognised on

. business At

At 1 January  Recognised in combinations 31 December

2018 income Restated* 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000

841 (176) - 665

12,498 10,158 - 22,656

(5,360) 693 (3,997) (10,664)

- 12 - 12

7,979 10,687 (3,997) 12,669

* Refer to Note 16 for details of prior period restatement as a result of finalisation of business combinations.

All deferred tax is non-current as it is expected to be recovered after 12 months

The standard rate of UK corporation tax is 19% and this took effect from I April 2017. The 2016 Finance Act introduced a
UK corporation tax rate of 17% from | April 2020. Accordingly, these rates are applicable in the measurement of deferred
tax assets and liabilities at 31 December 2019. Defeued tax has been provided at 17% being the rate at which temporary

differences are expected to reverse.

However, the Budget which took place on 11 March 2020 confirmed the tate of corporation tax will remain at 19% from 1
April 2020, cancelling the enacted rate reduction to 17%. The rate reduction reversal was substantively enacted on 17 March
2020 by way of a special resolution. Accordmgly, there will be an increase of £1,328,000 due to this rate change for the year

ended 31 December 2020.
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OVO Group Ltd

[

12 Property, plant and equipment

Group

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018

Acquired through business
combinations

Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2018
Additions ‘
Disposals

At 31 December 2019

‘Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018

Charge for year

Eliminated on disposal

At 31 December 2018
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposal

At 31 December 2019
Carrying amount V
At 31 December.2019,
At 31 December 2018

‘Leasehold

Fixtures and Office
property fittings ‘Equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
7,117 1,850 3,413 12,380.
y - 205 379 584
130 - 585 715
(181) (253) (362) . (796)-
7,066 1,802 4,015 12,883
2,103 195 . 975 © 3273
- - " (299) (299) -
9,169 1,997 4,691 15,857
5,650 1,332 2,397 9,379
811 277 851 1,939
(181) (253) (362) - (796)
6,280 1,356 2,886 10,522
662 193 606 1,461
— - (299) (299
6,942 1,549 3,193 11,684
2,227 448 1,498 4,173
‘ 786 446 1,129 2,361

The depreciation charge of £1,461,000 (2018: £1,939,000) is recognised in administrative expenses. -
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12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Company
‘ Office
+ Equipment Total
: £000 £000
Cost or valuation B ' .
At | January 2018 . ) . - -
Additions ‘ ! : - 16 16
At 31 December 2018 ‘ ] 16 16
At | January 2019 : 16 .16
Additions : ' 39 39
At 31 December 2019 3 , B 55 55 -
Accumulated. depreciation . } E
At 1 January 2018 . ’ ' ‘ . -
Charge for year ‘ _ o ‘ 1 - C
-At 31 December 2018 ! o _ 1 |
At 1 January 2019 . . 1 1
Charge for the year , ' : 12 12
' At 31 December 2019 4 - ' 13 - 13
Carrying amount .
At 31 December 2019 ’ ) - 42 42
At 31 December 2018 ' o : 15 - 15
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13 'Intangible assets

Group
Contractual :
’ customer Other intangible
Goodwill relationships assets - Total
£000 ~£000 £000 £ 000

Cost or valuation . .
At 1 January 2018 : 44,714 19,800 36,149 100,663
Additions .- - 1,788 1,788
Acquired through business o : . . . :
combinations - restated* . 1,245 . 37,094 - .90 38,429
Dlsposals A ‘ : : - - (1,966) (1,966)
“At 31 December 2018 A ' 45,959 T - 56,894 36,061 138,914
Additions . - - 10,919 ’ 10,919
Acquired through busmess .
combinations . - 22,141 - : 22,141
Disposals e ' (1,639) - S (1,639)
At 31 December 2019 . 44,320 ] 79,035 46,980 170,335
Accumulated amortisation . i .
At | January 2018 : . - 1,320 -~ 16,019 17,339
Amottisation charge ’ . : - 1,980 . 5,917 7,897
Amortisation eliminated on disposals ) - - (970) ~ (970)
At 31 December 2018 _ _ - 3,300 20,966 24,266
Amortisation charge - ©12,743 4,429 ° 17,172
Amortisation eliminated on disposals 413) - U - (413)
[mpairment : ' 413 3144 - 3,557
At 31 December 2019 - ) 19,187 25,395 44,582
Carrying amount )
At 31 December 2019 ' 44,320 59,848 ‘ 21,585 125,753
At 31 December 2018 ' 45,959 53,594 15,095 114,648

* Refer to Note 16 for details of the restatement resulting from finalisation of acquisition accounting. -

The amortisation charge of £17,172 000'(2018 £7,897,000) is recognised in administrative expenses

There has been impairment of £3,557,000 (2018 £nil) recognised .in the year This relates- to the GlOUpS valuation of its
investment in Home Telecom Ltd. -
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13 Intangible assets (continued)

At each reporting period end date, an annual impairment test is undertaken. This test coAmpares the carrying value of the
non-financial assets of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to their recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is less
than the carrying value, an impairment occurs. .

At the balance sheet date, the non=financial assets of the Group were tested for impairment. With the exception of the
impairment of Home Telecom Ltd noted above, this testing did not identify any further instances where the recoverable
amount was in excess of the carrying value and therefore no impairment charge has been recorded.

" The carrying value of the intangible asséts has been determined using a value in use calculation in line with LAS 36.

The methodology applied to the value in use calculations reflects past expenence and external sources of mfonmatlon .
including:

» cash flows for the business for the following year derived from budgets for 2020. The Directors believe these to be
reasonably achievable;

« subsequent cash flows for four additional years increased in line with growth expectatlons of the business; .

"« cash flows beyond the five-year period extlapolated using a long-term nominal growth rate 0f 2.0%; and

ca pre -tax discount rate of 8.4%.

No reasonable possible change in any of the above assumptions would result in the elimination of the recoverable amount
headroom over the assets carrymg values.

Further, management consider that Plan Zero will create opportunlues and financial value for the Group and has not had a
negative lmpact on our impairment assessments
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13 Intangible assets (continued)

Company

Cost or valuation
At | January 2018
Additions

At 31 December 2018
At 1 January 2019
Additions

At 31 December 2019
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2019
At 31 December 2018

14 Right of use assets

Group

The balance sheet shows the following asset amounts relating to leases: .

Cost or valuation

At I January 2019 (on adoption of IFRS 16)
- At 31 December 2019 .

Depreciation
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2019

Cariying amount

At 31 December 2019

Other

Intangibles Total

£000 £000

“178 178

178 178

178 178

4,663 4,663

4,841 4,841

4,841 - - 4,841

178 178

Property Other 'Tot;ll
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
20,165 2,225 22,390
20,165 2,225 22,390
2,658 785 3,443
2,658 785 3,443
1,440 18,947
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14 Right of use assets (continued)

Property . Total
Company £ 000 £000
Cost or valuation . . o
At | January 2019 (on adoption of IFRS 16) ~ ~ : 704 704
At 31 December 2019 : . ) 704 . 704
Depreciation , ) '- A
Charge for the year S : ‘ ' - 217 . 217
At 31 December 2019 ’ ' ' 217 217
Carrying amount
At31 December 2019 - i ’ 487 487

In the previous year, the group only recognised lease assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases that were classified as
‘finance leases’ under IAS 17 Leases. . .

For adjlistments recognised on édbption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, please refer to Note 3.
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15 Investments

Group subsidiaries

Details of the group subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

OVO Energy Ltd*

OVO Electricity Ltd

OVO Gas Ltd

ONI Energy Ltd*
ONI Electricity Ltd
ONI Gas Ltd

Ovo Field Force Ltd
(formely Intelligent
Energy Technology
Services Ltd)*

Intelligent Energy
Technology Ltd

(previously OVO
Technology Ltd)*

Ovo Holdings Ltd
(formely Lilibet Holdings
Ltd)*

Ovo Finance Ltd
(formerly Lilibet Finance
Ltd) :

Corgi Homeplan Ltd

Principal activity

Sale of electricity and gas
to customers in the UK

Procurement and sale of
UK electricity from the
wholesale markets and
renewable sources

Supply of gas and UK
related services

Dormént

Dormant

Dormant

Smart meter installation

business-

Product development and
provision of trading
services

Holding company

Holding company

Provider of boiler and
home care cover

.

Registered office

1 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol,

BS1 6ED, UK

1 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol,
BS1 6ED, UK '

I Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol,
BS1 6ED, UK

Murray House, Murray Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT
6DN, UK

Murray House, Murray Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT

' 6DN, UK

Murray House, Murray Street,
Belfast, Northern [reland, BT1
6DN, UK

1 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol,
BS1 6ED, UK

1 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol,
BS1 6ED, UK

i Ri\'ergat_e Temple Quay, Bristol,
England, BSI 6ED, UK

1 Rivergate Temple Quay, Bristol,
England, BS1 6ED, UK

1 Masierton Park, South Castle
Drive, Dunfermline, Fife, KY 11
8NX, UK
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2019 2018
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100% 100%
100% 100%
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100% " 100%
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15 Investments (continued)

.Name of subsidiary

Corgi Homeheat Ltd

CLCB Holdings

Hybrid Energy Solutions
Ltd

ETP Assets | Ltd

Lumo Online Ltd
Sp;«h"k Energy Ltd

Spark Gas Shipping Ltd

Spark Energy Finance Plc

Spark Generation Ltd

OVO Energy Pty Ltd* -

ovo Energy France
SAS*

OVO Energy
(Netherlands) B.V.

Principal activity

Installation of boilers

" Disolved

Electric Vehicle charge -
point installers

Dormant

Dormant

- Sale of electricity and gas

to customers in the UK
Supply of gas and related

services

Finance

Disolved

Sale of electricity and gas

to customers in Australia

Sale of electricity and gas
to customers in France

Dormant -

Registered office .

1 Masterton Park, South Castle
Drive, Dunfermline, Fife, KY11
8NX, UK

1 Masterton Park, South Castle
Drive, Dunfermline, Fife, KY11
SNX .

Unit 1b Silver House Adelphi
Way, Ireland Industrial Estate,
Staveley, Chesterfield, Derbyshire,

. England, §43 3LJ, UK

140-142 Kensingtc;n Church
Street, London, England, W8 4BN
UK ) .

140-142 Kensington Church

“Street, London, England, W8

4BN
UK

Ettrick Riverside, Dunsdale
Road, Selkirk, United
Kingdom, TD7 SEB

UK

{ Rivergate, Temple Quay,
Bristol, England, BS1 6ED
UK

Ettrick Riverside, Dunsdale
Road, Selkirk, Scotland, TD7
SEB

UK

Ettrick Riverside, Dunsdéle Road,
Selkirk Scotland

19/181 William Street

Melbourne
VIC .
3000

-Australia

231 rue Saint-Honore 75061 Paris

France

Netherlands
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-.ownership interest

and veting rights held

. 2019

100%

0%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

0%

100%

100%

100%

2018

100%
100%

67%

‘l 00%

100%

100%

roo%‘

100%

100%

100%

100%

0%
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15 Investments (continued)

Name of subsidiary

OVO Energy (Italy) S.r.l

OVO Energy Spain'S.L.L

OVO Energy Japan GK

OVO Energy Germany
GmbH

4hundred GmbH-
Kantan Ltd (formerly
Corgi Network Ltd)

Orion Energy Technology
Ltd

Kaluzg Ltd

OVO.Insurance Services
Limited

VCharge Inc

VCharge UK Ltd )

. Principal activity

Dormant

Sale of electricity and gas
to customers in Spain

Dormant

Dormant

Sale of electricity and gas
to customers in Germany
[nformation technology
Information techonology

Information technology

[nsurance éCI'ViCCS

Disolved

" Disolved

* indicates direct investment of the company

Reg_.istcre.d office

Via dell'Annunciata . 23/4, Avv.

Francesco Dagnino c¢/o LEXIA
Avvocati, 20121, Milan, Italy

~C. Muntaner 328 Entresuelo 1a,

08021 Barcelona, Espaiia

‘Level 1 1, Aoyama Palacio Tower

3-6-7 Kita-Aoyama Minato-ku,
Tokyo

C023 Berlin UG, Stresem-énn'sr.
23, 10963 Berlin, Germany

Ernst-Heimeran-Weg 10, 82319,
Starnberg, Germany

140 — 142 Kensington Church

. Street, London, W8 4BN

69 Notting Hill Gate, Notting Hill,

England, W11 3JS

140-142 Kensington Church
Street, London, England, W8 4BN

PO Box 155, Mill Court, La
Charroterie, St Peter Port,
Guernsey, GY1 4ET

USA
1 Masterton Park, South Castle

Drive, Dunfermline, Scotland,
KY11 8NX

Proportion of -
ownership interest
and voting rights held

2019 2018
100% 0%
100% 0%
100% 0%
100% . 0%
0% = - 58.1%
100% 100%
100% 0%
100% 0%
100% 0%
0% 100%
0%

100%

During the period, the group aquired the remaining share capital in Hybrid Energy Solutions Ltd,vinci"easing the ownership
interest from 67% to 100%. This has resulted in the elimination of non controlling interest in 2019. :
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15’ Investments (continued)

Group associates .
Details of the group associates as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: .

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting rights

Name of associate Principal activity ~ Registered office : held by the group

' : : ©2019 - 2018
Indra Renewable Engiﬁecring design 140 - 142 Kensington Church . 24.9% 24.9%
Technologies Limited activities for industrial Street, London, England, W8 4BN

’ " process and production UK -
Chaddenwych Services Energy information 86-90 Paul Street, London, ) 29% 0%
Limited technology service England, EC2A 4NE
activities )
The Renewable Exchange Trade of renewable energy  The Waterfront Ground Floor, 44%. 0%
Limited Welsh Back, Bristol, England, BS1
' 4SB

Group Associates . : o o  £000
Cost or valuation ) ' B )
At | January 2018 ‘ _ : L : 200
Share of associate losses ) ’ T : - (176)
At 31 December 2018 C , . 24
Share of associate losses - ) R . ) (547) .
Additions . . ’ S ' 1,380
At 31 December 2019 to 857

Carrying amount v _
At 31 December 2019 ‘ : ' 857
At 31 December 2018 - - : ' 4
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15 Investments (continued)

Surnmary of the company investments

31 December 31 Decemb.err
©2019 : 2018
£000 . - £000

"Investments in subsidiaries : , _ 195,594 87,898
Subsidiaries - E T £000
Cost ) . . A _

(At January 2018 : ' : ' : 86,334
Additions ‘ ) 1,564
At 31 December 2018 . : . ’ . ) 87,898
Transfer resultmg from corporate restructure ’ 108,800
Additions , ' , . - 257
Disposals : : (1,361)
At 31 December 2019 : : . ) : 195,594
Carrying amount ) ' '

At 31 December 2019 - ' ‘ 195,594

4 At 31 December 2018 ) ‘ ' 87,898 -
Corporate Restructuring :

On 31 October 2019 OVO Group Limited undertook a series of mtemal conpoaate restructuring transactions which have had
the following impact on the Company:

« OVO Group Limited acquires 100% of the share capital in OVO Field Force (previously Intelligent Energy Technology
Services Ltd) from Intelligent Energy Technology Limited. OVO Group Limited entity. has therefore recognised an increase
in investments relating to OVO Field Fonce and a correspondmg intercompany payable to Intelligent Energy Technology
. Limited.

» OVO Group Limited contributed its shares in OVO Field Force (previously Intelligent Energy Technology Services Ltd) to’
OVO Holdings Limited. in exchange for the issuance of two shares in OVO Holdings Limited. Where 100% of both .
subsidiaries are ultimately consolidated into the same parent (OVO Field Force Limited and OVO Holdings Limited are both
100% subsidiaries of OVO Group Limited), the two shares in OVO Holdings Limited received by OVO Group Limited are
deemed to have a value equivalent to OVO Field Force Limited, as the value of the investment in totality has only increased
by the value of OVO Field Force Limited. ’ ' .

OVO Group Limited entity has therefore recognised an increase iir its investment in OVO Holdings Limited by the fair value
.of OVO Field Force Limited and a corresponding decrease in investments of OVO Field Force by its carrying value.

« OVO Group Limited contributed. its shares in OVO Energy Limited to OVO Holdings Limited in exchange for the issuance
of two shares in OVO Holdings Limited. Where 100% of both subsidiaries are ultimately consolidated into the same parent
(OVO Energy Limited and OVO Holdings Limited are both 100% subsidiaries of OVO Group Limited), the two shares in -
OVO Holdings Limited received by OVO Group Limited are deemed to have a value equivalent to OVO Energy Limited, as
the value of the investment in totality has only increased by the value of OVO Energy Limited.

OVO Group Limited entity has therefore recognised an increase in its investment in OVO-Holdings Limited by the fair value
of OVO Energy Limited and a corresponding decrease in investments of OVO Energy Limited by its carrying value. The
difference betwéen the increase in the investment in OVO Holdings Limited and the decrease in the investment in OVO
Energy Limited has been recogmsed as a gain on acquisition.
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16 Acquisition of subsidiary

On 12 January 2019, the group entered into a transaction via the Supplier ‘of Last Resort (“SOLR”) which resulted i in the
acquisition of customer base of Economy Energy Ltd ("Economy Energy"), along with a commltment to repay other
liabilities to its customers. The principal activity of Economy Energy is the supply of gas and electricity.

“There is significant judgement of the fair value of the acquired group's net assets, and the best available data has therefore -
been used. The amounts recognised in respect of the |dent|fable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the
table below .

‘ 31 December

.- 2019
. £000
Assets and liabilities acquired
Identifiable intangbile assets ) \ . : 22,198
Def_‘erred tax liability . A (3,774)
Financial liabilities : . ) (17,229)
Total identifiable assets : . 1,195

The total consideration transferred was £nil.

This business combination resulted in a bargain punjchase.tl‘ansaction because the provisional fair value of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceed the total of the fair value of consideration paid by £1,195,000.

Intarigjble assets of £22,198,000 have been recognised on acquisition of Economy Energy Ltd's customer base. This was for
the recognition of existing relationships with approximately 360,000 customer-accounts.

Reasscssment of the fanr value of the group's acquisition in the prior year

On 28 November 2018, the group acquired lOO% of the issued share capital of Spark Enengy Ltd through Ofgem's Supphel
. of Last Resort process. The principal activity of Spark Energy Ltd and its subsidiaries is the supply of gas and électricity.
Spark Energy Ltd was acquned to grow the Gloup s domestic energy customer base.

During 2019, the provisional fair values, as reported in the 3l December 2018 OVO Group Limited financial statements,
have been finalised and new information about facts and circumstances that existed at the date of acquisition has been used
to adjust the acquisition accounting. The adjustments to the provisional amounts have been recognised as if the accounting
for the business combination had been completed at the acqunsmon date.

The adjusted fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired, as at 28 ‘November 2018, are as follows:
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16 Acquisition of subsidiary (continued)

Provisional fair Finalised fair
Measurement

: N . value of assets X value of assets

Assets and liabilities acquired C e period P
and liabilities . . and liabilities

. adjustments. .
» acquired acquired

Financial assets o o ] ) 22,748 (2,973) 19,775
Property, plant and equiApment ‘ - 584 - 584
Indentifable intangible assets . ' 27,680 . 9,400 ' 37,080
Deferred tax liability . ’ : ‘(4,397)\ ) (1,600) (5,997)

" Financial Liabilities ' . (29,353) (3,200) (32,553)
Total identifiable assets ’ " 17,262 1,627 18,889
‘Consideration Transferred ' . - - -

Gain on Bargain Purchase T 17,262 1627 183889

Intangible assets of £37,080,000 have been recognised on the acquisition of Spark Energy Ltd and its subsidiaries. This was
for the recognition of existing relationships with approximately 290,000 customer accounts.

Finance assets recognised contain an expeéted amount claimed to Ofgem under the Last Resort Supply Payment Scheme.

17 Inventories

Group ) Company :
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 . 2018 . 2019 2018
) ) ) £ 000 £000 - £000 - £000
Finished goods and goods for resale ‘ 9,828 4,909 - -

The cost of ROC's recognised as an expense in.the year amounted to £108,987,000 (2018 - £76,422,000): This is 'included
within cost of sales. ) e '

18 Trade and oiher receivables

Group ) Company -
31 December : ’ .
31 December . 2018 31'December 31 December
2019 Restated* 2019 2018
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £000
Trade receivables and accrued ’ A . ’ :
income : 187,344 . 104,797 . - . -
Provision for impairment of trade - : . - } :
receivables and accrued income (77,825) (52,923) - -
Net trade receivables and accrued A
income ' 109,519 51,874 - _ -
Receivables from related parties = - 4,583 1,708 : 18,531 69,535
Prepayments v C 8,024 11,362 287 74
Other receivables _ 20,166 27,389 3,748 - 354
142,292 92,333 122,566 ) 69,963
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18 Trarle and other receivables (continued)

*Refer to Note 16 for details of” prlor period restatement to Other receivables resultmg from the finalisation of acquisition
accountmg

Accured income of £74,234,000 included in the Trade receivables and accrued income disclosed above, has increase from
£46,912,000 in 2018, driven pnmally by the impact of the acquisiton of Economy, Energy Limited in the current year.

The fair value of those trade and-other receivables classnﬁed as financial assets are disclosed in the financial instruments
note.

The group's exposure to credit and market risks, including impairments and allowances for credit losses, relating to trade and
other receivables is disclosed in the financial risk managément and lmpaument of financial assets note.

The Shell commodity purchasing arrangement gives rise to a variable llablllty to Shell Wthh is a combination of accounts
payable and future purchase commitments secured on the cash and debtors of OVO Energy Ltd. As at the year end there was
no oustanding liability on the extended credit facmty

19 Cash and cash equivalents-

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 - 2018
. £000 . £000 £000 ) £000
Cash at bank 23,379 81,045 150 366
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20 -Trade and other payables

Group . . Company
: : 31 December

* 31 December 2018 31 December - 31'Decemb¢r
2019 . Rest_ated* 2019 2018

. £000 “£000 £ 000 : £000 -

. Trade payables , 102,542, 5,170 209 -
* Accrued expenses 138,915 T 192,226 446 - 132
Amounts due to related parties 3,181 ‘ 1,678 19,241 . 47,765
Social security and other taxes . 1,727 1513 . : . .
Other payables _ . 19,439 ' 3,491 9 93

265,804 ~ 204,078 19,905 47,990

*Refer to Note 16 for details of pnor penod restatement of Other payables resultmg from the ﬁnallsatlon of acquisition
accounting. .

Deferred income of £89,595,000 has decreased-from £110,050,000 in 2018, primarily driven by lower cash receipts at the ]
year end as well as the impact of weather. fluctuations against seasonal norms in the prior period, resulting in reduced
customer credit posmons as a result of increased usage. '

All of the opening deferred income balance has been recognised as Revenue during the year, w1th the closmg balance
relating to new habllmes where the associated performance obligation has not yet been satisfied.

The group's exposure to market and llqu1d|ty risks, mcludmg maturity analysis, related to trade and other payables is
disclosed in the financial risk review note.
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21 Leases

Group
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to lease llablllthS

31 December 1 January

s
2019 2019*% .
‘ £000 “£000
Lease Liability - Current : o 2,528 1,840
Lease Liability - Non-current S . 18,084 20,550
Total Lease Liability : " o ‘ A T 20613 22,390

.

: *ln the previous yéar, the group only recognised lease assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases that were classnﬁed as
‘finance leases’ under [AS 17 Leases.

For adjustments recognised on adoption of [FRS 16 on | january 2019, please refer to Note 3.

_Lease liabilities maturity analysis
A maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on undnscounted gross cash ﬂow is reported in the table below

“

31 December " 31 December
2019 ©2018

. . . £000 £000°

" Less than one year . . - 3,821 - 4,119 .
Between one and five years ’ 17,646 . 17,551
Greater than five years ‘ K . 5,270 . 630
Total lease liabilities (undiécounted) ) - 126,737 22,300

- The group leases various offices and vehicles. The balance sheet amounts relatlng to leases are shown w1thm Note l4 R:ght
of use asselts.

The current period interest expense on lease liabilities (included in finance cost) was £1,330,000.
The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 3 l"December 2019 was £3,107,000

Expenses relating to short-term leases accounted for by applymg IFRS 16, paragraph 6 (included in administrative expenses)
totalled £431 000 .

Expenses relatmg to leases of Iow-value assets accounted for by app]ymg IFRS 16, paragraph 6 (mcluded in administrative
expenses) totalled £19,000.

Company
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to lease liabilities:’
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21 Leases (continued) -

31 December 1 -.lanuafy

2019 2019

o v £'000 £'000

Lease Liability - Current _ R 13) (200)
Lease Liability - Non-current : . . (291) - (505)
Total Lease Liability . : (508 (703)

Lease liabilities maturity analysis )
A maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on undiscounted gross cash flow is reported in the table below:

‘ : '.“‘51 December
! ’ : " 2019

: . , £000
Less than one year : . ’ ’ 291
" Between one and five years ' ' A : 62
Total lease. liabilities (undiscounted) ' o v ' 353

The company leases various oftices. The balance sheet amounts relating to leases are shown within Note 14 - Right of use
asselts. :

The current peﬁod interest expenSe on lease liabilities (included in finance cost) was £49,000.
The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2019 was £249,000.

Expenses relating to 5hort—ferm leases accounted for by applying IFRS 16, paragraph 6 (included in administrative expenses)
totalled £nil. : . o :

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets accounted for by applying IFRS 16, paragraph 6 (included in administrative
. expenses) totalled £nil. ’ :
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22_ Share capital anf] reserves

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares -

31 December ) * 31 December
2019 2018
“No. - £ No. o £
A Ordinary of £0.00001 each ) 14,598,927 146 11,549,110 - . 115
B1 Ordinary of £0.00001 each 22,222 : ' - 84,076 1
B2 Ordinary of £0.00001 each 52,651 ’ 1 - : .-
C Ordinary of £0.00001 each ‘ 27,321 - 86,457 S
- D1 Ordinary of £0.00001 each 221,401 ' 2 732,597 7
D2 Ordinary of £0.00001 each 36,038 . - ' 131,022 1
D3 Ordinary'of£0.00001 each . : 67,674 : 1 259,656 3
D4 Ordinary of £0.00001 each ' 28,215 . 149,854 1
D5 Ordinary of £0.00001 each 54,302 . | 572,241 6
El Ordinalyrof£0.0000l each 529,972 . 5 605,445 6
Preferred Shares of £0.00001 each 1,869,749 19 2,424,771 - . 24
Deferred Shares of £0.00001 each ‘ : 39,319 - 499,940 . 5.
o 17,547,791 175 17,095,169 ) 171

The B1, B2 ,C, D and E shares have been issued as part of Employee Share Schemes as discussed in Note 22. -

Current year movements in issued capital are as follows:

31 December Newl l. ed.' Converted / 31 December

] . 2018 Wiy Issu cancelled . 2019
A Ordinary — - 11,549,110 1,658,282 1,391,535 14,598,927

B1 Ordinary , 84,076 22,222’ (84,076) 22222
B2 Ordinary B - . 52,651 ' - 52,651
. COrdinary ' . 86,457 ' - (59,136) - 27,321
D1 Ordinary o 732,597 : - (511,196) 221,401
D2 Ordinary" . 131,022 - (94,984) .36,038
D3 Ordinary 259,656 - o (191,982) 67,674
D4 Ordinary ) 149,854 - (121,639) 28?215
D5 Ordinary o 572,241 - (517,939) . 54,302
El Ordinary - - 605,445 - (75,473) © 529972
Preference » . 2,424,771 - >(555,022) 1,869,749
Deferred ‘ 499,940 - (460,621) 39,319

During the year, 1,391,535 A Ordinary shares were converted from B,C,D, E and preference shares for no change in nominal
value. .
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22 Share capital and reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share-based payments :

" The share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the value of equity- -settled share-based payments provided to
employees, including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer to note 25 for further details of these
plans. .

Share Premium

1,658,282 A Ordinary shares were issued to Mitsubishi Coproration tor conSIderatlon of £109,340, 000 Share premium of
* £102,555,000 has been recognised in the current year, representing the excess consideration received above the nominal
value of the shares issued, less the £6,785,000 of associated transaction costs.

All other reserves are as stated in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

23 Pension and other schemes

Defined contributi'on pension scheme

The gnoup operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents contrrbutlons
payable by the group to the scheme and amounted to £2,057,000 (2018 - £l ,350,000).

24 Share-based payments
Ovo Group Ltd Share Scheme

Scheme details and movements

In July 2014, OVO Group Ltd established a new employee share plan. Under the terms of the scheme, OVO Group Ltd
awarded its own employees and employees of other group companies class B, C, D and E ordinary shares in OVO Group
Ltd.

B shares (Employee Shareholder Scheme') are free shares awarded to employees in line with the UK govemment‘s employee
“shareholder status rules. They have a three year vesting period.

Employees are given the option to purchase C shaies from their bonus. They have a one year vestmg period.
D shares are also awarded as part of the LTIP scheme They have a vesting period based on performance conditions.
E shares are also awarded as part of the LTIP scheme. They have a vesting period based on performance conditions.

The scheme is equity settled and a fair value liability was calculated on grant date. The expense is charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the expected vesting period of the awards.
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24 Share-based payments (cantinued)

Analysis of charge to the consolidated income statement

Weighted average vesting period (months)

£000 2,019 2018
'B' Shares 166 184
'C' Shares - -
. 'D' Shares - -
'E' Shares 48 18
L 214 202
Reconciliation of movements in awards g
Thousands ofshares‘ _ 4 'B' Shares 'C' Shares 'D' Shares 'E’ Shares -
As at | January 2019 85 87 1,845 %05
Issued March 2019 - - - -
_ Issued June 2019 75 - - -
Issued December 2019 - - - -
- Cancelled / converted (85) 60) . (1,437) - (75)
ylssucd at 31 Déceﬁbcr 2019 75 27 408 530.
Weighted éverage veéti.ng period (months)- 36 - - 12
Thousands of shares 'B' Shares 'C' Shares 'D* Shares 'E' Shares
As at 1 January 2018 8 8 1,845 TR
Issued June 2018 - - - -
Issued September 2018 l - 4 - 267
Issued December 2018 - 3 - 288
 Cancelled / converted A . 3) - (104)
Issued at 31 December 2018 85 87 1,845 ' 605
1 .8 - 24
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24 Share-t;-zwlsed payments (continuéd)’

Pricing

For the purbose of valuing thé awards, to calculate the share-based payment charge all shares issued were valued based on an
observable market multiples of competitors, discounted cash flow and where available transaction data.

'‘B' Shares

Upon issuance, the 'B' Shares awarded in June 2017 were valued at £12.10 per share September 2017 shares were valued at
£15.30 per share and December 2017 shares were valued at £15.30 per share. 'B1' Shares 1ssued June 2019 were valued at
£14.30 and 'B2' Shares at £2.60.

'C' Shares
Upon issuance, the 'C' Shales awarded in June 20I 7 were valued at £17.00 per share and September 2017 shares were valued
at £17.00 per share. The 'C' Shares awarded in 2018 were all valued at£17. 00 pel share.

'D' Shares
Upon issuance, the 'D' Shares awarded in .lune 2017 were valued at £0.31 per share and Septembel 2017 shales were valued
at £0.31 per share There were no 'D’ Shares awarded in 2018.

'E' Shares

Upon issuance, the 'E' Shales awarded in 2017 had no fair value. The 'E' Shares awarded in 2018 were valued at £0.20 per
share.

25 Provisions

Group .
) L ' Facility
Ofgem settlement agreement exit Dilapidation
provision _ fee provision. provisions Total
: , £000 ) - £000 £000 : £000
At | January 2019 , - 12,000 923 2,923
Additional provisions” ) . 8,876 . i - ‘ .- 98 ' 8,974
Provisions used ' - - ‘ (325) (325)
At 31 December 2019 ’ 8,876 .- 2,000 -696 11,572

Current liabilities . : - 8,876 2,000 . 696 . 11,572

- Dilapidation provision

The Group is required to restore the leased premises of its offices to their original condition at the end of the respective lease
terms. A provision has been recognised for the present value of the estimated expenditure required to remove any leasehold
improvements. These costs have been capitalised as part of the cost of leasehold improvements and are amortised over the
shorter of the term of the lease or the useful llfe of the assets.
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25 Provisions (continued)

Facility agreement exit fee provision

Upon the occurence of an exit event for a fully repaid facility agreement, the group is required to make an exit fee payment
. based on the enterprise value of the group at the date of the event. The recognised provision reflects the director's best
estimates of the fair value of this fee at 31 December 2019. .

Ofgem settlement agreement provision

Ofgem's investigation into OVO Electricity Ltd's and OVO Gas Ltd's compliance with Standard Licence Condition(s) 0,
22C, 25C, 26, 27, 28A and 31A of their gas and electricity supply licence was continued through the year and concluded in
April:2020. In recognition of these issues, OVO Group Limited agreed a settlement with Ofgem in accordance with which a
Penalty and Consumer Redress package totalling £8,876,000, which has been provided in full at 31 December 2019.

Company

At January 2019
Increase in existing provisions

At 31 December 2019

Current liabilities

26 Financial instruments

Group

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Valuation methods and assumptions

Financial Assets

Ofgem settlement

. provision . Total

£000 - £000

8,876 8,876.

8,876 8,876

8,876 8,876

Carrying value Fair value
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000
'23,367 81,101 23,367 81,101
134,998 97,136 134,998 97,136
178,237 158,377

158,377

178,237

The fair value of financial assets-is based on the expectation of recovery of balances. Impaired receivables ‘mainly relate to
customers from whom it is unlikely that full payment will ever be received. The primary inputs used to impair the receivable

balances are not based on observable market data.

T~
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26 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Carrying value . Fair value

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 . 2018 2019 . 2018

£000 . £ 000 £000 .. %000

Trade and other payables ‘ . 264,077 204,067 264,077 204,067
Borrowings ‘ - 33,934 - 33,934
' 264,077 238,001 264,077 238,001

Valuation methods and assumptions

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The fair value of the trade and other payables and borrowings is estlmated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is material. Due to the short maturities, the fair
-value of the.trade and other payables approximates to their book value. The inputs used to determine the llablhty are not
based on observable market data.

Forward Contracts
During the course of the year the group has assessed all forward contracts fbr‘securing gas and electricity and determined
that the contracts are entered into for the purpose of "own use". As such, no derivatives have been accounted for in relation

to these contracts.

Company

- Financial assets

Carrying value Fair value
' ,

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 " 2018 2019 2018

£000 £000 . £000 £ 000

- Cash and cash equivalents <150 366 - ) 150 366
Trade and other receivables . . 122,279 71,951 122,279 71,951

122,429 72317 - 122,429 72,317 -

Valuation methods and assumptions

Financial Assets :
" The fair value of financial assets is based on the expectation of 1ecove1y of balances There have been no historic defaults
over the other receivables balance, therefore the full balance is expected to be received. The primary inputs used to impair
the receivable balances are not based on observable market data.
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26 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Carrying value Fair value

31 Dccemben 31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2018 . 2019 2018
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000 -
Trade and other payables A 19,905 47,978 19,905 ) 47,978

Valuation methods-and assumptions

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost )

The fair value of trade and other payables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate
of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is material. Due to their short maturities, the fair value of the trade and other
payables approximates'to their book value. The mputs used to determine. the liability are not based on observable market,
data.

- 27 Financial risk management and impairment of financial assets

Group .

The Groups's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (predominantly ﬁ'om commodity price risk),

credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of commodity
_price markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Risk management committee, under policies approved by the Directors and the Group
management team. .

Credit risk and impairment

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or countelpany to a financial instrument fails fo meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and from security deposits and
prepayments to suppliers and distributors and deposits with the Group's bank.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. Therefore, the maximum exposure to credit
risk at the balance sheet date was £134,998,000 (2018: £97,043,000) being the total of the carrying amount of financial
assets, excluding equity investments and cash, which include trade receivables and accrued income. All the receivables are
with parties in the UK. The allowance account of trade receivables is used to re¢ord impairment losses unless the Group is
satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that point the amounts considered irrecoverable are written off
against the trade receivables directly.The Group provides for impairment losses based on estimated irrecoverable amounts
determined by reference to specific circumstancés and the experlence of management of debtor default in the industry.

Trade receivables are written off only after a period oftnme has elapqed since the final bill. Enforcement activity continues in
respect of these balances unless there is specific know circumstances that removes any value in further action.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither due or impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information

about counterparty default rates. Impaired receivables mainly relate to customers from whom it is unlikely that full payments
will be received. -
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27 Financial risk management and impairment of financial assets (continued)

Allowances for impairment by credit losses

Trade
A - receivables
20019 - £000
At start of year ) : 52,923
Additional impairment for credit losses . : . . 24,902
At end of year . : - 71,825
. l Trade -
. . . . _ receivables
2018 ‘ . , - : £000
At start of year 40,286
Additional impairment for credit losses ‘ 12,637 .
Atend of year . ' ' - 52,923

All credit inﬁpairment losses recognised within the Group related to contracts with customers.

Market risk
Commodity price risk

Commodity risk is the exposure that the Gtoup has to price movements in the wholesale gas and electricity markets. The risk

is primarily that market prices for commodities will fluctuate between the time that tariffs are set and the time at. which the.
- corresponding procurement cost is fixed; this may result in lower than expected margins or unprofitable sales. The Group is

also exposed to volumetric risk.in the form of uncertain consumption profiles arising from a range of factors which include
. weather economic cllmate and changes in energy consumptlon patterns.

The Group's exposure to commodity risk is managed through the use of derivative financial instruments. The Group does not
use derivatives and other financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are measured at fair value on the contract date and are re-measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments are recognised in the income statement as they arise.
Unrealised net losses on open contl acts at the year end were £nil (2018: £nil). : .

The Group manages this risk by entenng into forward contracts for a variefy of penods Enelgy procurement contracts are
entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt of a non-financial item which is in accordance with the
Group's expected purchase and sale requirements and are therefore out of scope of IFRS 9. Energy contracts that are not
financial instruments under IFRS 9 are accounted for as executory contracts and changes in fair value do not immediately
impact profit or equity, and as such, are not exposed to commodity price risk as defined by IFRS 7. So whilst the risk
associated with energy procurement contracts outside the scope of IFRS 9 is monitored for internal risk management
purposes, only those energy contracts within the scope of [FRS 9 are w1thm the scope of the IFRS 7 disclosure requirements.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group management team uses short and long-term cash flow forecasts to manage liquidity risk. Forecasts are
supplemented by sensitivity analysis which is used to assess funding adequacy for at least a 12 month period.
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The biggést threat to the Group's liquidity would arise from unusually cold weather or other factors causing customer
volumes to be much higher than anticipated. This could place a strain on the Group's working capital as payments due to

. supplier invoices could become due before customer collection levels could be adjusted.

The Group manages its cash resources to ensure it has sufficient funds to meet all expected demands as they fall due.

Maturity a‘nalysis

5 Within 1 year . Total

2019 : ' £000 £000
Trade and other payables ] B 265,804 265,804
) i : R Within 1 year  After 1 year Total

2018 ) ) £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables o . . © 204,067 ] - . 204,067
Bank borrowings _ : - - 33,934 33,934
204,067 33,934 238,001

.Capital risk management

Capltal management
Capntal risk is managed to ensure the Group continues as a going concern and grows in a sustainable manner.

The Group maintains a consolidated financial model to monitor the development of the Group's capital structure, which has
the ability to model various scenarios and sensitivities. Key outputs from this model are regularly presented to the board.

The company and group have no borrowings from third parties, should debt be introduced into the capital structure in the -
future then gearing would be managed and monitored. '

28 Net finance income/(costs)

L2019 2018

£000 : £ 000
Finance income ' )
Interest income on bank deposits. . 667 174
. Finance costs o ) . ' .
External finance interest and cha:ges ' (2,600) ©(2,381)
Interest expense on leases . E _ . (1,330) . ' -
* Total finance costs ’ , o , (3.930) , (2,381)
Net finance costs S - S (3263) (2,207)

Page 70



ovo Groub Ltd ' ‘ o )

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

29 Loans and borrowings

Group ) Company

31 December 31 December 31 December * 31 December
2019 ’ 2018 2019 . 2018 -
£000 . ‘ £000 _£000 " £000
Non-current loans and borrowmgs ! ] ) .
Bank borrowings - 33,934 N o -

Group

The prior year loan balance relates primarily to the loan taken with HSBC and Investec during prior periods and was
denominated in GBP with a nominal interest rate of 5.6% and with the final instalment due on 28 February 2023. The Senior
Facilities were secured on the assets and shares of the entities within the Banking Group, being CLCB Holdings Ltd, Corgi
Homeplan Ltd and Corgi Homeheat lelted and were also supported by a panent company guarantee from OVO Group
Limited. :

These prior year bank borrowings were repaid in full during the current period.

The group's exposure to market and liquidity risk; mcludmg maturity analysis, in respect of loans and borrowings is
dlsclosed in the financial risk management and impairment note.

30 Related party transactions

Key management personnel
Key management includes directors and members of the Group management team. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services to the Group's subsidiaries is shown below.

Key management compensation . i
' 31 December 31 December

2019 ’ 2018
- £000 - £000
“Salaries and other short term employee benefits ' A . 2,106 1,872

‘Summary of transactions with key management

Stephen Fltzpatnck directly controls 1.8% of the voting shares of the Company,. he also owns 100% of the share capital of
Imagmatlon Industries Ltd, which owns a further 66.3% of the Company's shares.

Y

Transactions with directors

Loans, transactions and guarantees with directors

2019 - ‘ Advances to At 31

directors December 2019
£000 £ 000

Loans to directors ' S 100 - 100
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Loans to directors are subject to interest at a rate of 2.5% per year and will accrue on a daily basis on the principal amount of
the loan outstanding. Interest is payable upon the repayment of the loan amount.
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Summary of transactions with parent entities

Company

During the year, the Company was rebaid loan funds by Imagination Industries Limited of £148,000 (2018: pxovided loans
" of £148,000). The loan incurred no interest charge on the capital balance. As at 31 December 2019, the total balance
outstandmg was nil (2018 £148,000).

During the year, the Company incurred £100k of costs payable to Mayfair Equity Partners LLP (2018: £100k).

Summary of transactlons wnth other related parties

During the year, the Company was repaid loan funds by Vertical Aerospace Ltd of £35,000 (2018: provided loans of
£35,000). The loan incurred no interest charge on the capital balance As at 3I December 2019, the total balance outstanding
was nil (2018: £35,000).

Summary of transactions with subsidiaries
Company

During the year, the Company repaid loan funds to OVO Field Force Ltd (previously Intelligent Energy Technology
Services Ltd) of £30,627,000 (2018: provided loans of £12,653,000). The loan incurred an interest charge on the capital
balance in the current year of 7% (2018: 7%); the total interest paid in the current year by the Company was £1,700,000
(2018: £1,337,000). As at 31 December 2019 the Company owed £18, 807 000 to OVO Field Force Ltd (2018
£47,734,000).

During the year, the Company charged management charges to OVO Field Force Ltd (previously Intelligent Energy
Technology Services Ltd) for the provnsmn of Management personnel of£785 000 (2018: £106,000). The costs are included
in the balance outstandmo above.

During the year; the Company provided loan funds to OVO Energy Ltd of £16,541,000 (2018: repaid loans of £7,591,000).
The loan incurred an interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2018: 7%); the total interest received in the year was
£1,716,000 (2018: £1,190,000). As at 31 December 2019, the total balance outstanding was £31,276,000 (2018:
£13,019,000). o . '

During the year, the Company provided loan funds to Corgi Homeplan Ltd of £7,193,000 (2018 £1,300,000). The loan
incurred an interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2018: 7%); the total interest received in the year was £524, 000
(2018: £90,000). As at 31 December 20l9 the total balance outstandmg was £10,314,000 (2018: £2,597,000).

During the year, the Company provided nil loan funds to OVO Holdings Ltd (Previously Lilibet Holdings Ltd) (20]8 nil).
The loan incurred an interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2018: 7%); the total interest received in the year was
£1,946,000 (2018: £1,946,000). As at 31 December 2019, the total balance outstanding was £32,989,000 (2018:
£31,043,000).

During the- year, the Company was repaid loan funds by Intelligent Energy Technology Ltd of £6,904,000 (2018: provided
loans of £9,061,000). The loan incurred an interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2018: 7%); the total interest
received in the year-was £938,000 (2018: £604,000). As at 31 December 2019 the total balance outstandmg was £7,884,000
(2018: £13,850,000). ‘ v ,

During the year, ‘the Company charged manage'ment chal’ges to Intelligent Energy Technology Ltd for theAprovision of
Management personnel of £48,000 (2018: £34,000). The costs are included in the balance outstanding above.
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During the year, the Company provided Iban funds to OVO Energy France SAS of £1,283,000 (2018: nil). The loan incurred
an interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2018: 7%); the total interest received in the year was £30,000 (2018 nil). As
at 31 December 2019, the total balance outstandmg was £1,313,000 (2018: ml) ‘

During the year, the Company provided loan funds to OVO Energy Spain S.L.L. of £840,000 (2018: nil). The loan incurred
an interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2018: 7%); the total interest received in the year was £17,000 (2018: nil). As
at 31 December 2019, the total balance outstanding was £857,000 (2018: nil).

During the year, the Company provided loan funds to OVO Energy Pty Ltd of £1,225,000 (20[8 nil). The loan incurred an
interest charge on the capital balance of 7% (2018: 7%); the total interest received in the year was £32,000 (2018: ml) As at
31 December 2019, the total balance outstandmg was £1,256,000 (2018: nil). .

During the year, ‘the Company was 1epaid loan funds by V Charge UK Ltd of £3,310,000 (2018: provided loans of
£1,614,000). The loan incurred no interest charge on the capital balance. As at 31 December 2019, the total balance
outstanding was ml (2018: £1,319,000).

During the year, the Company was repaid loan funds by CLCB Holdmgs Ltd of £3,310, 000 (2018: plowded loans of
£3,310,000). The loan incurred no interest charge on the capital balance. As at 31 December 2019 the total balance
outstanding was nil (2018: £3,310 ,000).

During the year, the Company received loan funds from Sbark Energy Ltd of £363,000 (2018: nil). The loan incurred no
interest charge on the capital balance. As at 31 December 2019, the total balance outstanding was'£363,000 (2018: nil).

During the year, the Cdmpany‘received loan funds from Orion Energy Ltd of £72,000 (2018: nil). The loan incurred no .
interest cha'.rge on the capital balance. As at 31 December 2019, the total balance outstanding was £72,000 (2018: nil).

During the year, the Company provnded loan funds to Kantan Ltd of £973,000 (2018: nil). The loan incurred no mterest
charge on the capital balance. As at 31 December 2019, the total balance outstanding was £973, 000 (2018: nil).

During the year, the Company provided loan funds to OVO Finance Ltd (previously Lilibet Finance Ltd) of £31,661,000

(2018: received loan funds of £179,000). The loan incurred no interest charge .on the capital balance. As at 31 December
2019, the total balance outstanding was £31,481,000 (2018: the Company owed £179,000).

i
31 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The ultimate parent is Imagination Industries Ltd.

The most senior parent entity producing publicly available financial statements is [magmatlon Industries Ltd. These financial
statements are avanlable upon request from the neglstened office shown in note 1.

. The ultimate controlling party is Stephen Fitzpatrick.
32 Contingent liabilities

Group
The Group has no material contingent habllmes as at 31 December 2019.
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33~ Non adjusting events after the financial year

Acquisition of SSE Energy Services Ltd

On 15 January 2020, OVO Energy Limited, an indirect subsidiary of OVO Group Limited, acquired 100% of the issued
shares in SSE Energy Services Ltd (SSE plc's GB domestic retail business) for consideration of £441,938,000. The
acquisition is expected to increase the group's market share and reduce costs through economies of scale. The financial
effects of this transaction have not been recognised as of 31 December 2019. The operating results and assets and liabilities
of the acquired company will be consolidated from 15 January 2020. -

The acquisition was financed through a combination of a new £400,000,000 Term Loan between OVO Finance Limited and
Barclays Bank plc and £41,938,000 in Loan Notes issued by OVO Holdings Limited. Subsequently, the Term Loan has been
- syndicated into two separate instruments, a £300,000,000 Term Loan and a secondary loan of £100,000,000.

In completing this acquisition, OVO s customer base has expanded from 1.3m as at the balance sheet date to 5.1m as at the
date of completion.

_ As at the date of thése financial statements, the fair value accounting exercise has not been completed. The Group believes
that integration and synergies will drive significant change in the fair values and as such, the fair values assigned to assets
" and liabilities within SSE Energy Services and its subsndlanes will be dlsclosed within the 31 December 2020 financial
statements. -

There are no contingent liabilities to be recognised as part of this acquisition.

The net book value of assets and Iia.bilities of SSE Energy Services as at the date of acquisition are as follows:

Ne_t Baok Value . : A A . M
Cash and equivalents . . . 207,182
"Property, plant and equipment - . S 25,684
Identifiable intangible assets and goodwill - A 480,096
Inventories - o o , . ' 976
Receivables - ' S o - 1,091,809
Payables ) ‘ : . . _ . (1,370,852)
Net deferred tax assets ‘ : ' T 7,043
Net asscts and goodwill achulred ‘ _—Tm

. The goodwnll is attributable to SSE Energy Services’ strong position in the Domestlc Energy market and synergies expected
to arise a&el the company’s acquisition of the new subsidiary.

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax.

COVID-19

Our investment in technology and shaled platforms has ensured a hlgh level ‘of connectivity whlch means we are able to
move to remote operations with minimal disruption.

‘ However, untortun'atcly COVID 19 will impact our commercial performance in 2020, due to some key sales channels within
the business experiencing significant interruption as a result of the lockdown. The most notable. of these is the impact on our
ability to continue the roII out: ot smart meters to customers. - :

As a result of COV[D 19, we also anticipate the need to recognise additional bad debt charges in 2020 as the economic

consequences of the pandemic materialise with our customers. This will be recognised in accordance with IFRS 9, however
there has been no financial impact on these ﬁnancnal statements.
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34 Exemption of subsidiaries' requirement from preparmg individual financial statements

OVO Group Ltd has guaranteed the liabilities of the following subsidiaries in order that they quallfy for the exemption from-
audit under Section 479A of the Compannes Act 2006 relating to small compames in-respect of the year ended 31 December
2019:

« Intelligent Energy Technology lelted (company number 08330989)

* OVO Field Force Limited (previously Intelligent Energy Technology Services Limited) (company number 08785057)
« OVO Holdings Limited (previously Lilibet Holdings Limited) (company number 10722665)

« Corgi Homeplan Limited (company number SC358475)

« Corgi Homeheat Limited (company number SC431485)

« Spark Energy Limited (company number SC301188)

» Spark Gas Shipping Limited (company number 05857480)

«Kantan Limited (company number 11681210)

~~
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